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Report of the Board
The Board presents its report and the audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019.
Principal Activities
Wakefield and District Housing Limited (WDH) is a charitable Community Benefit Society (CBS)
registered under the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014: and is an exempt charity.
The Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 have been prepared as a CBS. WDH is a
not for profit registered provider administered by a remunerated Board.
Other members of the Group are:




WDH Solutions Limited (WDHS). A wholly owned subsidiary company incorporated under the
Companies Act 2006 and limited by guarantee.
Northern Shared Services Limited (NSS). A subsidiary company with a 51% holding incorporated
under the Companies Act 2006 as a private company that is limited by shares.
Bridge Homes (Yorkshire) LLP. A joint venture entity incorporated under the Companies Act 2006
as a Limited Liability Partnership with a 50% interest.

The Group’s and Association’s principal activities are the improvement, management and provision of
affordable housing; the delivery of social added value; and investment in new build development.
Business Review
Details of the Group's performance for the year and future plans are set out in the Strategic Report that
follows.
Board Members and Directors
The Board Members and the Directors of WDH who held office during the year, and since the year end,
are set out on page one. At the year end, WDH had nine Board members. All Board members are
ordinary members, who are drawn from a wide background, bringing together professional, commercial
and local skills and experience. From July 2017, Board members have been entitled to receive
payments for their services.
The Directors of the organisation are the Chief Executive, along with Directors of Housing, Finance,
Development. Corporate Services, Organisational Development, Technical Services and Growth. The
Directors hold no interest in the Group and act within the authority delegated by the Board. The
Group’s insurance policies indemnify Board Members and Officers of the business against liability when
acting on behalf of WDH.
Service Contracts
The Chief Executive and other Directors are employed on similar terms to other employees. However,
their notice periods are either a minimum of three months or a minimum of two months.
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Report of the Board
Pensions
The Directors are members of the West Yorkshire Pension Fund, a defined benefit, Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS) based on career average earnings. They participate in the scheme on the
same terms as all other eligible employees. WDH contributes to the scheme on behalf of its employees
who are members.
Other Benefits
The Directors are entitled to other benefits such as the provision of a car allowance and health care,
although not all benefits are taken. Details of their remuneration packages are included in note 9 to the
Financial Statements.
Employees
The strength of the Group lies in the quality of all its employees. In particular, the ability to meet
objectives of the Group and Association and commitments to tenants in an efficient and effective
manner is reliant on their valuable contribution.
The Group shares information about its strategic objectives, performance progress and operational
activities through regular meetings involving the Board, senior management team, employees and
employee representatives.
The Group also recognises that complying with the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974, and the
regulations made under it, is at the core of its business ethic: The Group acknowledges that compliance
is a legal duty, not a matter of choice.
The Group has a policy to recruit the right person for each position taking into consideration the
protected characteristics as defined by the Equality Act 2010 which includes people with disabilities.
The Group’s Diversity and Inclusion Policy ensures that the recruitment and selection process
establishes a workforce that reflects, as much as possible, the local communities in which the Group
operates.
Donations
The Group made donations of £26k (2018: £21k) through Neighbourhood Panels in support of
Community initiatives and activities. Twenty eight Community Grants were made for local schemes,
none of which exceeded £1,500.
The Group made no political donations in the year (2018: £nil).
Going Concern
The Group has strong positive operational cash flows and has in place long term debt facilities,
including £75m undrawn facilities at 31 March 2019. This capacity provides adequate resources with
which to finance committed investment and development programmes, as well as supporting the
Group’s day to day operations. The Business Plan demonstrates that WDH is able to service debt
facilities whilst continuing to comply with lenders’ covenants.
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Report of the Board
Going Concern (continued)
After making enquiries, the Board has a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources
to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, being a period of at least 12 months after
the date on which the Report and Financial Statements are signed. For this reason, it continues to
adopt the going concern basis for the Financial Statements.
Future Developments
The Board is ambitious to increase capacity to deliver additional New Build development and has
instigated refinancing negotiations that will support increased new supply, create the freedoms
necessary to run the business at its optimum capacity and to deliver increased added social value to
local communities.
The Board has allocated sufficient resources to fund a significant investment in Enterprise Resource
Planning software designed to deliver a ‘digital business’, an essential element of improved service
delivery and competitiveness and growth and diversification. As well as providing improved automation
and integrated applications, investment in cultural change and digital behaviours will support an
improved tenant and client experience.
Internal Controls Assurance
The Board has overall responsibility for establishing and maintaining the comprehensive system of
internal control across the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness. The Board cannot delegate
ultimate responsibility for the system of internal control, but it has delegated authority to the Audit and
Risk Committee to regularly review the effectiveness of the system of internal control.
The system of internal control adopted is designed to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of the
failure to achieve objectives, and to provide reasonable assurance against material misstatement or
loss, providing reasonable but not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The process for identifying,
evaluating and managing significant risks is ongoing and has been in place throughout the period
commencing 1 April 2018, up to the date of approval of the Report and Financial Statements.
Key elements of the control framework include:




Board approved Standing Orders and terms of reference, and delegated authorities for the Audit
and Risk, Investment and Funding, Operational, and Compliance and Assurance Committees.
A formal Risk Management Policy, with a Board approved Risk Appetite Statement, and clearly
defined management responsibilities for the identification, evaluation and control of significant risks.
Detailed and challenging stress testing and sensitivity analysis under a rigorous suite of scenarios.
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Report of the Board
Internal Controls Assurance (continued)












The organisation’s risks are challenged at each Board and Audit and Risk Committee meeting, with
the latter giving detailed consideration to the sources of risk assurance for the strategic risks as part
of ‘deep dive’ exercises undertaken at every meeting.
Board approved Code of Conduct that applies to all employees, Board, Committee and Panel
members. The Code is based on good practice, the National Housing Federation’s Excellence in
Standards of Conduct Code, and the findings of the Nolan Committee on ‘Standards in Public Life’.
Formal recruitment, retention, training and development policies, supported by a formal induction
and a competence based appraisal framework.
Robust strategic and business planning processes and detailed budgeting, forecasting, variance
analysis and the monitoring of key performance triggers linked to strategic risks, reported to senior
management monthly and to the Board and Funders quarterly.
Weekly Corporate Management Board (CMB) meetings for strategic oversight of the decision
making process, along with monthly Performance, Scrutiny and Challenge (PSC) meetings to
facilitate peer review and to challenge financial and operational performance, together with
emerging risks and performance against approved risk triggers.
Formal authorisation and appraisal procedures are in place for all significant new initiatives and
commitments.
Rigorous treasury management that is subject to external review twice each year, prior to being
approved by the Board.
Loan covenants monitored monthly and reported to monthly PSC meetings and submitted to
Funders quarterly.
Policies govern effectively the prevention of fraud and corruption, a whistleblowing code of practice,
and compliance with the introduction of the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR).

The internal audit function is delivered by outsourced internal auditors, ensuring greater independence,
objectivity and source of assurance, in accordance with the International Standards for the Professional
Practice of Internal Audit issued by the Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA). Fraud workshops
are held with Directors and senior managers to identify and evaluate potential risks and associated
mitigation controls. Fraud materialisations are reported to the Audit and Risk Committee and recorded
in a Fraud Register and to the Regulator on an annual basis.
Assurance mapping is performed against key strategic risks. The controls to mitigate risks are
considered, as are sources of assurance of the effectiveness of the controls. The Audit and Risk
Committee has received the Chief Executive’s annual review of the effectiveness of Internal Control
and the annual report of the Internal Auditors. Of the 12 audits completed, three medium and nine low
risk reports have been assigned with one high risk finding relating to a medium risk report in relation to
Fire Safety. The Auditors found no significant control failures and that controls appeared to be
operating effectively in the areas reviewed.
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Report of the Board
Internal Controls Assurance (continued)
A number of areas were identified where controls could be further strengthened, with all
recommendations being implemented.

Strategic Risks, Uncertainties and Opportunities
WDH has an embedded Risk Management Framework, with a Board defined Risk Appetite Statement
aligned to the Business Strategy. Integrated risk and assurance mapping of strategic risks utilises
‘Three lines of Defence’ to challenge sources of assurance of the effectiveness of controls.
WDH has not experienced any significant adverse impact on demand, the carrying value, or the
security valuation of its assets arising from the implication of the tragic Grenfell incident. WDH has 12
blocks that are over 18 metres high, none of which have non-compliant cladding or installation. These
properties represent less than 2.5% of WDH’s stock. Additional fire prevention measures, arising from
lessons learned, are funded through the virement of existing budgets, with no deterioration in covenant
compliance. Following detailed consideration of all assets, no issues have been identified that would
be cause for concern by any stakeholder or third party.
Causes and Issues

Controls Evaluation

Key controls and risk mitigation

Health and Safety and Fire Compliance
Legal and moral
obligations to safeguard
a range of stakeholders,
including tenants and
members of the public,
employees, contractors,
and other service users.

Medium likelihood
and high
consequence
High controls
assurance

Dedicated Health and Safety and Compliance teams
monitor and report on compliance with inspection and
servicing programmes agreed under a Concordat with
West Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Service (WYFRS)
regarding multi-storey fire risks.
Compartmentalisation controls include hard wired smoke
and heat detectors, smoke and fire seals within individual
flats, emergency lighting, fire control measures for bin
shoots and stores, dry riser inspections, and lifts adapted
for use by the Fire Service. Weekly fire safety checks, with
zero tolerance of blocked communal areas, annual risk
assessments, and three-monthly WYFRS inspections are
in place.

Economic, political and technological environment
Welfare Reform,
financial and digital
exclusion impact on
tenant employability, life
chances and aspirations,
and tenancy
sustainability.
Rent cuts have reduced
the capacity to develop
new homes.

High likelihood and
consequence
Moderate controls
assurance.

Investment in a range of pre and post tenancy services
supports sustainable tenancies; key performance
indicators, emerging trends, and the tenant experience are
monitored.
The strategy for growth and diversification supports
increased investment in New Build development supported
by the refinancing of existing loan facilities to deliver over
the longer term.
The Business Plan is stress tested under challenging
scenarios to identify sensitivities and break points.
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Strategic Risks, Uncertainties and Opportunities (continued)
Causes and Issues

Controls Evaluation

Key controls and risk mitigation

Governance arrangements
Growth and
diversification through
Partnership working and
Joint Ventures.

Medium likelihood
and high
consequence
Moderate controls
assurance

Risks associated with growth and diversification are
managed in accordance with the approved Risk Appetite,
requiring effective diligence and control arrangements to
ensure risks are kept within acceptable tolerances.
Robust Board recruitment and selection, development and
standing down arrangements. Code of Conduct and
documents including Conflicts of Interest.
Board Away Days are used to review strategic direction of
the Association.
Board and Committees have access to independent
external advice and training.

Non-compliance with the Regulatory Standards
Governance and viability
at highest regulatory
standard. Maintenance
of stakeholder
confidence.
Delivering increased
Value for Money (VFM)
and New Build
developments.

Medium likelihood
and high
consequence

Robust governance, internal control and risk management
arrangements in place, and reviewed annually by internal
audit.

High controls
assurance

The Treasury Management Strategy is challenged
externally, and periodic updates and awareness training is
provided to the Board.
Detailed scenario and stress testing is performed on the
Business Plan and proposed new ventures and is reported
to the Board.

Not capitalising on or pursuing business opportunities
Not utilising the resource
capacity of the business
to maximise the delivery
of New Build
developments and
added social value.

High likelihood and
Opportunities are analysed and assessed for financial
medium consequence return and strategic fit.
Moderate controls
assurance

Risks associated with growth and diversification are
managed in accordance with the approved Risk Appetite,
requiring effective diligence and control arrangements to
ensure risks are kept within acceptable tolerances.

Appropriate employee base with the necessary skills and competencies
Having an appropriately
skilled workforce with the
right competencies to
deliver the Vision and
Business Strategy
through digital
technology.

Medium likelihood
and high
consequence

Effective recruitment and selection arrangements ensure a
fair, consistent, and inclusive approach, and recruitment
campaigns target people with the skills required.

Moderate controls
assurance

An effective appraisal framework linked to the WDH DNA,
developing competencies and skills to meet the needs of
the business, and an annual review of succession
arrangements.
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Strategic Risks, Uncertainties and Opportunities (continued)
Causes and Issues

Controls Evaluation

Key controls and risk mitigation

ICT resilience and loss of access to key data
Failure to provide tenant
and client usability and
accessibility.

Medium likelihood
and high
consequence

IT resilience, business continuity and disaster recovery
frameworks are in place. Improvements are made as
technological advancements become available.

An increasing reliance
on ICT to deliver
effective and efficient
services on a 24/7 basis.

High controls
assurance

Cyber security threats are analysed, and countermeasures
and anti-virus software are kept up to date.
Specialist services such as frequent network penetration
testing are used to validate a robust security configuration.

Cyber-attacks and user
abuse.

Cyber-attack insurance is also in place as a last line of
defence.

Failing to maximise the opportunities of being a Digital Business
Not meeting tenant
expectations and an
inability to deliver growth
and diversification from
not having fully
integrated systems.

Medium likelihood
and high
consequence
Moderate controls
assurance

Continued investment in Enterprise Resource Planning
software and supporting systems will deliver the digital
platform on which the tenant and client experience will be
improved significantly, as well as enabling growth and
diversification.
Phase one of the project went live during April 2019 within
Finance, HR and Procurement. Phase two will move asset
management and delivery onto the Dynamics platform.
This work is due to start during 2019 / 2020.
This project will provide the automation of routine functions,
the integration of all parts of the business for productivity
and efficiency improvements, greater effectiveness from
new ways of working and enhanced stakeholder
communications.

Brexit Preparations
The Group and Association has comprehensive preparations for a ‘no-deal’ Brexit. The short-term
priority is to maintain key frontline activities in neighbourhood and property services. Sufficient
assurance in the organisations ability to continue to deliver services and in sourcing of supplies are in
place to ensure continuity of the critical services.
Longer term scenarios have been developed to consider the impact of issues, such as an economic
decline on the business, its tenants and estates. The focus of the scenarios used are cuts to rental
income caused by a return to economic recession, long term downturns in the housing market, impacts
of interest rate changes and increases in underlying inflation that effect material and labour costs.
Several scenarios of increasing severity were used to stress test the long term financial viability with a
hard Brexit included in this testing.
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Strategic Risks, Uncertainties and Opportunities (continued)
The Association has exit strategies in place to ensure the long term viability of the business. Similar
testing will be performed for 2020 / 2021 subject to the position of Brexit.
Financial Risk Management
The Board retains responsibility for determining policy and strategic oversight of the organisation’s
treasury risks and receives independent advice on treasury policy.
The Board uses various financial instruments to fund operations, including secured loans and cash
balances. The existence of these financial instruments exposes the Group to a number of key financial
risks against which prudent scenario planning and stress testing are adopted.
Interest Rate Risk
Operations and investment in New Build developments are financed through a mixture of operational
cash flows, retained surpluses and bank borrowings. Exposure to interest fluctuations on borrowings is
managed through the use of both fixed and variable rate instruments to ensure that the Group and
Association is protected against potential adverse movements in the markets. The Group does not
apply hedge accounting.
Liquidity Risk
The Group mitigates this financial risk by ensuring sufficient cash and loan capacity are available to
meet foreseeable needs and that invested cash assets are secure and readily available.
Credit Risk
The Group’s principal credit risk relates to tenant arrears. This risk is mitigated through a number of
financial inclusion measures which aim to ensure tenancies are sustainable. Universal Credit and
Welfare reforms compound this risk.
National Housing Federation (NHF) Excellence in Governance
Following an annual review, the Board confirms that the Association complies with the NHF’s Code of
Governance: Promoting Board Excellence for Housing Associations (2015 edition) and that the Board is
committed to achieving Excellence in Governance in relation to:








Constitution and composition of the Board and Committees;
Essential functions of the Board, Committees and Chairs;
Board skills assessments, renewal and review;
Conduct of Board and Committee business;
Audit and risk;
The Chief Executive; and
Conduct, probity and openness.
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Statement of the Responsibilities of the Board for the Annual
Report and Financial Statements
The Board is responsible for preparing the Report and Financial Statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.
Co-operative and Community Benefit Society legislation requires the Board to prepare Financial
Statements for each financial year. Under that law the Board have elected to prepare the Financial
Statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United
Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable laws), including FRS 102 The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland. Under the Co-operative and Community Benefit
Society legislation the Board must not approve the Financial Statements unless they are satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, and surplus or deficit of the Association and Group
for that period. In preparing these Financial Statements, the Board are required to:
 select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;
 make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
 state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards and the Statement of Recommended Practice
(SORP) Accounting by Registered Housing Providers 2014, have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the Financial Statements; and
 prepare the Financial Statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume
that the Association will continue in business.
The Board is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group and Association and enable it to ensure that the
Financial Statements comply with the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014, the
Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 and the Accounting Direction for Private Registered Providers of
Social Housing (April 2015). It is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Association and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
The Board are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the Association's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation
and dissemination of Financial Statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.
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Statement of the Responsibilities of the Board for the Annual
Report and Financial Statements (continued)
Annual General Meeting
The Annual General Meeting (AGM) will be held on 1 August 2019 at Merefield House, Castleford.
External Auditors
Grant Thornton UK LLP, having expressed their willingness to continue in office. A resolution to reappoint them as external auditors for the next financial year will be proposed at the AGM.
Approval
The report of the Board was approved by the Board on 1 August 2019 and signed on its behalf by:

Stephen Green
Chair
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Strategic Report
WDH is a registered provider with charitable objectives. WDH supports, facilitates and empowers
individuals and communities to have the confidence to become self-sustaining through targeted support
that delivers Value for Money (VFM) outcomes through the creation and utilisation of a social dividend.
WDH pursues three key business imperatives:




the provision of good quality, well managed housing for rent, primarily to people who are unable to
rent or buy at open market rates;
the supply of supported housing and care for people who need additional housing related support
or care; and
the optimum utilisation of resources that delivers an increasing new supply of affordable housing,
through investment in New Build developments, to improve the long-term life chances of tenants
and local communities.

Over the past 12 months, WDH has continued to make a significant investment in new housing supply,
existing properties and tenant support, to deliver increased VFM to all stakeholders. The resource
capacity and scale of the business delivers broad ranging social and economic benefits to local tenants
and communities through implementation of the Business Strategy.
The business has successfully delivered the first modules of integrated Enterprise Resource Planning
software, Finance and HR from 1 April 2019, and is progressing implementation of its assets solution.
These modules will deliver significant efficiencies and growth potential over the long term, through
automation and improved integration, in order to deliver the Vision of the Board.

Vision
The Vision is to ‘Create Confident Communities’ through investment in people, properties, places, and
improved performance. The Vision has rolling five-year milestones to inspire, transform and promote
excellence:




2020 - An enterprise with social impacts: through developing a model for sustainable living in mixed
tenure communities.
2025 - Making real change through social outcomes: through working collaboratively and inclusively
to deliver services people want.
2030 - Improving lives through social enterprise: through the promotion of self-sufficiency by
investing in tenant led businesses.
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Objectives and strategy
Through partnership work with stakeholders, WDH aims to meet the needs and aspirations of local
people through the pursuit of the following strategic objectives:





to be a positive force of leadership and influence to develop the potential of people;
to be a partner of choice to create better places to live;
to be a landlord of choice by putting the customer first; and
to adopt best practice in good governance.

These objectives are supported by a Performance Management Framework that delivers
transformational change.

Business Strategy
The Business Strategy, ‘Delivering the Vision’ sets out how WDH intends to achieve its ambitions;
summarises the risks involved; and identifies the efficiencies, the funding and redirection of resources
required to achieve strategic objectives. The Business Strategy incorporates the VFM Strategy and is
based on the following principles:





No reduction in the extent and quality of services to tenants and existing customers.
Maximise additional value from core business competencies.
Develop shared services model and partnership working.
Continue to pursue excellence through the European Foundation for Quality Management (EFQM)
global excellence model.

Consolidation of core housing services; growth in commercial activities and the delivery of increasing
volumes of New Build development; and the creation of additional social value added, form the basis of
the Business Strategy. These benefits will be delivered through investment in digital technologies,
systems and communication channels, through the continued implementation of the fully integrated
Enterprise Resource Planning system.
In support of the Vision to create confident communities, the following ambitions to the 2020 milestone
are pursued:





Opportunities for All: Maximise opportunities for our people and those who want to work for us.
Building Better Places: Invest in more new homes and land to meet the growing need for
affordable housing and become a leading regional housing provider.
Delivering Customer Excellence: Create excellent customer experience by offering a range of
services that maximise choice, opportunity, health and wellbeing.
A Digital Future: Be a digital business and enable tenants to maximise their digital opportunities.
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Business and Financial Review
The Group’s Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income and Statement of Financial Position
are presented on pages 36 and 40 respectively.
Group turnover is £155.6m (2018: £155.0m), an overall increase of 0.3%, this is mainly due to an
increase in first tranche shared ownership sales. Income from social housing lettings at £137.7m
remaining broadly in line with prior year
(2018: £137.9m), reflecting the ongoing 1% rent cuts imposed by Government.
Income from other social housing activities increased marginally to £13.0m
(2018: £11.8m), reflecting an increase in first tranche shared home ownership sales of £7.8m (2018:
£5.7m), but offset by a decrease in supporting people grant income to £0.3m (2018: £1m). Income
from non-social housing activities decreased marginally to £4.9m (2018: £5.4m).
For the year ended 31 March

2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

Total turnover £’000

155,561

155,047

158,491

156,321

151,751

Income from lettings £’000

137,736

137,869

141,347

141,496

137,946

Operating surplus £’000

33,612*

50,157*

50,166

37,371

36,004

Operating margin (overall)

21.6%*

32.4%*

32.1%

25.1%

24.4%

Operating margin (social housing)

23.4%

37.0%

37.1%

28.0%

26.3%

Surplus for the year £’000

14,840

30,765

30,577

17,228

12,064

EBITDA MRI Interest cover

193.4%

254.4%

238.7%

209.0%

219.5%

Overhead as % of turnover

80%

68%

68%

75%

76%

*These figures include the profit on disposal of assets. In 2017 / 2018 financial reporting requirements changed operating surplus to
include profit on disposal of assets.

Operating costs increased by 17.7% to £124.5m (2018: £105.8m). Of the in year increase, £10.6m
relates to the continued investment in the revenue generating assets and the nature of the in year
capital improvement programme, which focuses on long term improvement works and increased
expenditure on electrical, fire and gas compliance improvements. The remainder of the increase
relates to service provision costs linked to the Group and Association continuing to invest in its repairs
and customer support services, with a focus on protecting and improving the front-line services
delivered to its tenants.
The operating surplus has decreased due to the factors stated above. However, it still remains strong
at £33.6m (2018: £50.2m). The overall operating margin is 21.6% (2018: 32.4%), 19.9% (2018: 31.7%)
excluding the surplus from the disposal of property and the social housing margin was 23.4% (2018:
37.0%). These margins show a deterioration in financial performance but reflect the ambition of the
Board to improve the life chances of tenants.
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Strategic Report

Business and Financial Review (continued)
The Group surplus of £14.9m (2018: £30.8m) is lower than the previous year due to increased
operating costs but is in line with expectations.
Interest cover in earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation, less improvement works
capitalised (‘EBITDA MRI’) has reduced to 193.4% from 254.4%, as a result of increased operating
expenditure. However, a healthy margin for potential future development is still maintained.
The carrying value of current assets overall is on a steady upward trend, reflecting the Groups and
Associations strategy to increase investment in new build development. Housing properties are valued
at £708.6m (2018: £667.9m) using Existing Use Value for Social Housing (EUV-SH).
The value of the charged housing stock for the purposes of security against the loan facility has
increased marginally at £880m (2018: £874m). The market value of housing stock, assuming vacant
possession, excluding properties under shared ownership and intermediate rent, has increased to
£2.9bn (2018: £2.8bn).
2019
£’000

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

2015
£’000

708,558

667,947

662,118

659,596

893,399

20,907

17,179

16,389

17,433

16,524

11,850

12,000

12,705

12,685

12,500

4,042

3,241

1,700

993

84

Total fixed assets

745,504

700,520

693,114

690,927

922,740

Net current assets

83,704

75,900

55,509

29,247

17,799

Total assets less current liabilities

829,208

776,420

748,623

720,174

940,539

For the year ended 31 March
Tangible fixed assets – housing
properties
Tangible and Intangible fixed assets –
other
Investment properties
Investment in joint venture

Other fixed assets at some £15.2m (2018: £15.0m) reflects additions to plant and equipment and
furniture, fixtures and fittings, offset by reduced carrying value of other asset types as a result of
depreciation and disposals. Further rationalisation of the commercial shop and garage portfolio and
decreases in valuation has reduced the carrying value of investment properties to £11.9m (2018:
£12.0m), with the investment in the development Joint Venture, Bridge Homes (Yorkshire) LLP,
increasing to £3.5m (2018: £2.8m), reflecting an additional cash investment during the year.
Total fixed assets and total assets less current liabilities of £829.2m (2018: £776.4m) are on improving
trends.
WDH Solutions Board signed a deed of covenant to pay distributable profits of £23k (2018: £126k) to
WDH, the parent company, through gift aid.
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Business and Financial Review (continued)
The stock of housing is relatively stable, reflecting a steady number of Right to Buy (RTB), Right to
Acquire (RTA) and disposals, and significant growth in New Build properties, the net increase being 189
additional revenue generating assets.
Social housing stock owned as at the
year ended 31 March

2019
No.

2018
No.

2017
No.

2016
No.

2015
No.

General needs

29,264

29,110

29,093

29,137

29,033

Supported and older people

1,676

1,714

1,749

1,878

1,873

492

419

308

235

141

31,432

31,243

31,150

31,250

31,047

Low cost home ownership
Total social housing stock owned

Supported housing continues to be rationalised reflecting localised reduced demand and the
obsolescence of stock over time. Low cost home ownership is becoming an increasingly popular
affordable option throughout the region, experiencing a 17% increase to 492 units.
Combined void rent loss and bad debt provision remain marginal and are well within Board agreed
trigger limits. Sound debt management and continued support for tenants, and potential tenants, is
holding current arrears at acceptable levels, performance being consistent with Board expectations, as
the organisation has prepared for the increased rate at which Universal Credit has been rolled out in the
region from November 2018.
For the year ended 31 March
Rent losses (voids and bad debts as % of income
from lettings)
Current tenant rent arrears (as % income less
grants from lettings)

2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

2.45%

2.60%

1.96%

2.10%

2.30%

6.27%

2.95%

5.87%

5.78%

5.39%

Demand for the vast majority of stock remains strong and debt collection performance is very good.
Current tenant rent arrears were 6.27% compared to 2.95% in 2018, 2018 was particularly low due to
the timing of the housing benefit payment.
Total borrowings are £419.5m (2018: £410.6m) from an overall syndicated facility of £494.5m, the
remainder of the original £500m has been repaid. The syndicate is lead by the Royal Bank of Scotland
(RBS); including a £200m European Investment Bank (EIB) facility and a £140.5m facility from
Santander. Drawings are in Sterling at fixed and floating rates of interest and there is no exposure to
currency risk. During the year, total drawdowns were £10m and £1.1m was repaid.
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Business and Financial Review (continued)
Strong net operating cash flows are sufficient to fund existing, and Business Plan approved, investment
in new housing supply. Refinancing will create development investment capacity over the coming years
and would facilitate the flexibility required by the Board to realise the full potential of the business.
Other long term liabilities are repayable grants.
2019
£’000

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

2015
£’000

Loans (due over one year)

(417,300)

(409,500)

(410,600)

(412,800)

(413,900)

Pension liability

(62,859)

(42,769)

(41,973)

(25,404)

(32,433)

(652)

(2,769)

(2,829)

(1,104)

(27)

Valuation reserve

169,976

150,612

161,951

171,422

424,723

Income expenditure reserve

178,421

170,770

131,270

109,444

69,456

Total reserves

348,397

321,382

293,221

280,866

494,179

Year ended 31 March

Other long-term liabilities

There is a West Yorkshire Pension Fund (WYPF) liability of £62.8m (2018: £42.8m), in respect of this
Local Government Pension Scheme, the liability increasing due to a number of changes to the
assumptions adopted within the calculations, which include increases in life expectancy, salary and the
Consumer Price Index (CPI) inflation rate. The pension liability also includes a past service cost
provision for McCloud and the Guaranteed Minimum Pension, more details of this are in note 9.
Increases in reserves reflect the carrying values of assets at EUV-SH, and surplus for the year.
Liquidity is maintained at minimal cost through strong operational cash inflows and an appropriate mix
of fixed and variable borrowings, supported by external professional advice. Liquidity is very strong and
interest cover is well within risk assurance trigger controls.
Year ended 31 March
Liquidity (current assets as a ratio of
current liabilities)
Interest cover (operating surplus
divided by interest payable)
Gearing (total loans as a percentage
of reserves)
Debt per Unit £’s

2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

5.33

5.92

4.17

2.83

1.87

1.92

2.77

2.53

1.92

1.89

120.6

128.0

140.8

147.4

87.5

13,347

13,142

13,252

13,245

13,367

Gearing continues to reduce steadily; borrowings have increased by £10m due to a scheduled
drawdown of a loan. Total borrowings are £419.5m (2018: £410.6m) and reserves have strengthened
to £348m (2018: £321m) due to an increase in the carrying value of assets at EUV-SH.
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Business and Financial Review (continued)
Strong, positive operational cashflows continue; net cash inflows from operating activities remain
positive but have shown a reduction to £58.3m (2018: £76.2m) arising from the lower overall surplus for
the year. Debt per unit at some £13.3k has shown a marginal increase but remains in-line with prior
years.
However, the Board is ambitious to increase capacity to deliver additional New Build development and
has instigated refinancing negotiations that will support increased new supply and create the freedoms
necessary to run the business at its optimum capacity.
Existing fixed and floating rate debt, at £325m and £94.5m respectively, creates sufficient hedging
against interest rate increases; the weighted average cost of capital is 4.13%. No breaches of the
covenant occurred during the year and none are forecast. Undrawn loan facilities of £75m (2018:
£85m) are available under existing funding arrangements and a spread of counterparties hold monies
on short term deposit.

Annual Internal Performance Targets
The Board established the following challenging high level performance targets for the business for the
year.
2018 / 2019
Target

2018 / 2019
Actual

Outcome

Finance / Viability: Cashable efficiency savings

at least £750k

£459k

Not Achieved

Resource Capacity: Days lost per full time equivalent
employee (on a 12 month average)
Development / Growth: The number of new homes
delivered

no more than 8
days

8.38

Nearly
Achieved

400

402

Achieved

£31.2m

£28.6m

Nearly
Achieved

Less than
£7.36m

£6.79m

Achieved

6,219

6,036

Nearly
Achieved

28,335

29,261

Achieved

Board Targets

Assets: Spend against capital programme
Housing: Current and former rent debt
Programme Delivery: Validated electric tests
completed against planned
Programme Delivery: Gas services completed against
planned.

 Finance / Viability: £459k of recurring cashable efficiency savings were generated for reinvestment
in the delivery of additional homes, existing assets and delivering increased social added value. This
is less than the target of £750k, reflecting the increasingly difficult nature of achieving additional
recurring savings each year.
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Annual Internal Performance Targets (continued)
 Resource Capacity: The average number of days lost due to sickness absence per FTE employee
(on a 12 month average basis) during 2018 / 2019 was 8.38 days, just over the target of 8 days.
Performance has shown improvement during the financial year from 8.71 days in 2017 / 2018.
Improvements reflect continued efforts to implement a range of measures to reduce sickness and
support employees to return to work. Focus has been paid to addressing sickness in relation to
mental health, with programmes of training and awareness raising delivered to employees
throughout the organisation. The target for 2019 / 2020 remains at eight days.
 Development / Growth: During 2018 / 2019, £29.4m was invested in New Build development and
acquisitions, adding 402 new social housing homes (2017 / 2018: 300 units), exceeding the target of
400. The average development scheme payback is 36 years, four years under the 40 year target.
 Reinvestment in Assets: Spend of £28.6m was achieved against the capital improvement
programme, £14.9m was invested in long term improvement works to roofs and estate environmental
projects, a further £5.8m was invested in the Independent living scheme (ILS) improvement
programme, and £7.9m in compliance and planned works. The programme for 2019 / 2020 is in
place and a further £30m will be invested in line with the Business Plan.
 Housing: The amount of current and former tenant debt of £6.79m was within the £7.37m target.
This has increased slightly from the 2017 / 2018 position of £6.58m, performing better than the target
of £7.36m. The results are positive given the introduction of Universal Credit across the district from
November 2018. This high level of performance reflects the additional resources invested in the
Debt and Cash Wise Teams to support tenants and proactively manage cash collection.
 Programme Delivery: The annual programme of electrical tests was 6,219, of which, 6,102 were
completed and 6,036 of these validated, narrowly missing targets. Of the 183 not validated, 66 were
identified as not requiring an inspection and 117 are difficult to access properties which are
progressing through WDH’s access procedure, to ensure the required tests can be fully completed.
There were no gas services outstanding beyond their due date, with 29,261 gas services being
delivered in the year, exceeding the planned programme.
 Social Dividend: Another key measure identified in the Business Strategy is the social dividend
generated for investment in communities, to build better places and create confident communities in
line with WDH’s Vision. A social dividend, total income less core operating costs, of £74m (2017 /
2018: £67m) was achieved. The target for 2019 / 2020 has been revised to £76m in line with
Business Plan expectations.
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Securing VFM – Measuring VFM Performance
The focus of WDH’s VFM activities is to deliver an increased social dividend from the core housing
activities and use it in the most effective way to deliver social benefits, as well as much needed new
homes. The aim is to be top quartile in each indicator.
This report uses a suite of metrics, including the Regulator of Social Housing (RSH) VFM Metrics and
NHF Sector Scorecard measures, to compare performance to the sector and peer organisations.
WDH measures VFM performance against four perspectives aligned to the business ambitions and
outcomes set out in the Business Strategy.

Corporate Perspective: Creating a sustainable workforce
High levels of employee satisfaction generate VFM efficiencies through improved retention, higher
levels of capability, increased productivity and lower transaction costs.
Employee satisfaction with WDH as a place to work strengthened to 84.6% in the last employee survey
which took during 2017 / 2018, exceeding the challenging target of 83.5%. The next survey will take
place during 2019 / 2020 as part of preparations for Investors in People re-accreditation.
As a result of efforts to implement a range of measures to reduce sickness and support employees to
return to work, the average number of days lost to sickness absence per FTE during 2018 / 2019 has
reduced to 8.38 days (2017 / 2018: 8.71), slightly behind the target of eight days. This measure was a
Board level target for 2018 / 2019 as described on page 19.
High standards of service have been maintained whilst driving down core overhead costs to 7.3% of
adjusted turnover, meeting the intended target of 7.5%.
Part of the approach to reducing core overhead costs has been to increase the number of externally
funded posts across the business through partnership working. This increased to 175 during the year,
(2017 / 2018: 174) but fell short of the intended target of 179.
WDH has commenced a three year project to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of services
through the integration of existing IT systems into a single Enterprise Resource Planning system using
Microsoft Dynamics, this will drive further efficiencies and help to further reduce core overhead costs
across back office support services.
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Community Perspective: Creating sustainable assets

Performance
Measure

RSH VFM
Metric

Increasing the Supply of New Homes
In 2018 / 2019, £29.4m was invested in New Build development and acquisitions, adding 402 new
social housing homes (2017 / 2018: 300 units) across the Yorkshire region, equivalent to 1.14% of
stock, exceeding the target of 400.

Number of units
developed
(social housing)

WDH
2016 /
2017

WDH
2017 /
2018

191

Comparison to Sector Scorecard Peer Group 2017 /
2018

WDH
2018 /
2019

Upper

Median

Lower

WDH
Quartile

300

277

180

96

Upper

402

New supply
delivered %
(social housing)

2a

0.60%

1.0%

2.0%

1.0%

1.0%

Median

1.3%

New supply
delivered % (nonsocial housing)

2b

0.0%

0%

n/a

n/a

n/a

Not
Compared

0%

Gearing

3

62.3%

49.5%

33.0%

45.5%

54.6%

Median

46.8%

% reinvestment

1

4.6%

5.9%

11.0%

8.1%

5.8%

Median

6.7%

Gearing is reducing steadily, as a result of an increase in the valuation of housing properties, whilst the
level of outstanding loans increased marginally, and strong cash flows continue to minimise borrowing
requirements. Performance is expected to remain median quartile when compared to peers.
Reinvestment in new and existing properties has increased marginally to 6.7% in 2018 / 2019 from
5.9% in 2017 / 2018. Performance for 2018 / 2019 is expected to remain median quartile.
The Board has ambitious plans to increase delivery and is creating capacity for further growth through
refinancing. For the year ending 31 March 2020, current planned investment will be £40m to deliver
additional homes. This will be increased, subject to securing additional funding.
To increase the supply of new build properties, WDH has a Joint Venture,
Bridge Homes (Yorkshire) LLP, with Wakefield Council. During 2018 / 2019 this has delivered 56
homes. Negotiations are advancing to replicate this model.
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Managing and Improving Assets
Delivering increased VFM through the rationalisation of under-performing assets continues to be a key
area of focus.
All existing properties are ‘RAG’ (red, amber, green) rated in terms of income generation, demand,
location, property type and the long-term investment requirements.
The RAG profile has improved over time delivering increased VFM as a result of targeted investment,
and the rationalisation of under-performing assets. At Transfer, in 2005, there were 2,372 ‘red’
properties. At the end of 2018 / 2019, 98.3% of the 31,432 housing stock was classed as viable under
WDH’s reinvestment criteria.
At 31 March 2019, 521 properties (1.7%) were classed as ‘red’, unviable due to significant issues, low
demand for property type and investment needs. Each ‘red’ property has an investment assessment
that will lead to reinvestment and retention in the association’s stock, or the property will be disposed to
remove the future costs from the Business Plan.
Change in stock profile since transfer

Red

High level of reinvestment needed or low demand.

Amber

Medium levels of reinvestment needed to move to green.

Green

Low reinvestment needed. Can be maintained with minimum intervention.
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Managing and Improving Assets (continued)
Occupancy performance remains strong, indicating upper quartile performance. The ratio of responsive
repairs to planned maintenance at 0.55 remains relatively consistent to 2017 / 2018, planned
investment being some £31m (2017 / 2018: £27.2m); WDH continues to invest into its stock to maintain
long term viability. Performance is anticipated to remain at median quartile performance.

RSH VFM
Metric

Comparison to Sector Scorecard Peer Group
2017 / 2018

WDH
2016 /
2017

Occupancy

n/a

99.7%

99.7%

99.5%

99.3%

98.8%

Upper

99.7%

Ratio of responsive
repairs to planned
maintenance

n/a

0.45

0.54

0.77

0.60

0.48

Median

0.55

Return on capital
employed (ROCE)

7

6.7%

6.5%

6.8%

5.2%

4.4%

Median

4.1%

Performance Measure

WDH
2017 /
2018

Upper

Median

Lower

WDH
Quartile

WDH
2018 /
2019

The return generated from core housing assets of 4.1% is lower than 2017 / 2018, but in line with Board
expectations and the approved Business Plan. The main reason for the decrease is the lower surplus
generated in 2018 / 2019 compared to 2017 / 2018. WDH’s asset base continues to strengthen with
housing stock values increasing and is expected to remain median quartile.

2017 / 2018 Annual HouseMark Data
Performance Measure
Upper
Cost per property major and
cyclical works
Average SAP rating of selfcontained dwellings
% of respondents very or fairly
satisfied with the overall quality
of their home

Benchmark 2017 / 2018
Median
Lower

WDH 2017 / 2018
WDH
Quartile

WDH
2018 /
2019

£1,159.52

£1,298.12

£1,542.71

£1,316.61

Median

£1,489.51

72.1

70.7

69.0

70.4

Median

69

90.4%

88.8%

85.0%

90.4%

Upper

89.1%
(actual)

WDH increased its investment in properties, resulting in a cost per property of major and cyclical works
of £1,489.51. Performance is expected to remain median quartile. Significant investment will continue
in accordance with the strategy of the Board to maintain its revenue generating assets at the highest
standard.
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Managing and Improving Assets (continued)
WDH continues to invest in delivering the highest standards of fire safety and compliance in its high-rise
buildings. During 2018 / 2019, WDH trialled a range of enhanced security and safety options for highrise blocks as part of a pilot at Low Cross Court, Knottingley. Improvements will be rolled out across
WDH’s other high-rise blocks as part of a three year programme.
Energy efficiency, evidenced by the SAP rating, remains relatively constant, given the age portfolio of
the housing stock, despite continued investment through a retrofit programme.

Customer Perspective: creating sustainable tenancies
Customer Satisfaction
Higher levels of satisfaction lead to secure income as a result of stable and sustained tenancies, as well
as positive recommendations to potential new customers.
WDH’s 2019 Tenant Survey, which benchmarks against peers, showed satisfaction with the service
provided by WDH has decreased slightly to 92.3% (2017 / 2018: 94.7%). This performance is expected
to be median quartile based on the 2017 / 2018 rankings. This slight deterioration on the 2017 / 2018
result reflects an increase in people responding that they were neither satisfied nor dissatisfied. At the
lower end of the satisfaction scale, overall dissatisfaction also reduced, from 3.5% to 2.5%.
Tenant satisfaction that rents provide VFM increased from 87.8% in 2017 / 2018 to 89% for 2018 /
2019, exceeding intended targets of 85%, placing WDH within median performance based on the
benchmarking results for 2017 / 2018.
Performance Measure
% of respondents very or
fairly satisfied with the
overall service provided
% of tenants very or fairly
satisfied that their rent is
value for money

Comparison to Sector Scorecard Peer Group
2017 / 2018
WDH
Upper
Median
Lower
Quartile

WDH
2018 /
2019

94.7%

92.8%

87.0%

83.5%

Upper

92.3%
(actual)

87.8%

91.57%

87.55%

85.0%

Median

89.0%
(actual)

WDH 2016
/ 2017

WDH 2017
/ 2018

92.2%
84.5%
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Customer Satisfaction (continued)
Insights from surveys are used to ensure satisfaction remains high, particularly in the
areas most important to tenants. Priority areas for improvement have been set for keeping promises
and commitments; making it easier for customers to contact WDH; and managing nuisance and
antisocial behaviour (ASB). These priorities are being supported through widening use of the Bright
Index across estate management, to enable more rapid understanding of customer satisfaction and
concerns.
The 2019 Tenant Survey shows that two of the targets for 2018 / 2019 were not achieved, with outturn
performance for the year decreasing compared to the previous year.
2016 / 2017
Actual

2017 / 2018
Actual

2018 / 2019
Target

2018 / 2019
Actual

Keeping promises and commitments

73%

81%

85%

75%

How easy we are to do business with

76%

78%

79%

81%

Managing nuisance and ASB

76%

78%

80%

67%

Priority

Analysis is being undertaken to understand the reasons for this and identifying future action to improve
performance in these areas. Ease of doing business with WDH continues to show positive
improvement, exceeding target.
Satisfaction with repairs and maintenance reduced marginally to 89.1% in 2018 / 2019. This is a slight
deterioration on the 2017 / 2018 result, due to more people responding that they were neither satisfied
or dissatisfied. Overall dissatisfaction remains low, reducing from 4.9% to 4.6%.
Repairs are completed exceptionally efficiently, with the average number of days taken to complete
repairs at six days, and is expected to remain upper quartile, with 93% of repairs completed at the first
visit, expecting to remain median quartile.
The average cost of a responsive repair reduced marginally in 2018 / 2019 and is expected to remain
median quartile.
2017 / 2018 Annual HouseMark Data
Performance Measure
% of respondents very or fairly
satisfied with repairs and
maintenance
Average number of calendar
days to complete repairs
% of repairs completed at first
visit
Average cost of a responsive
repair

WDH 2018 /
2019

Benchmark 2017 / 2018
Upper
Median
Lower

WDH 2017 / 2018
WDH
Quartile

89.0%

85.9%

77.9%

90.6%

Upper

89.1%
(actual)

6.8

11.0

13.6

5.0

Upper

6.0

97.0%

93.1%

89.6%

92%

Median

93%

£108.81

£117.48

£144.69

£116.42

Median

£103.49
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Customer Satisfaction (continued)
Tenancy Sustainment

A broad range of services are provided to mitigate the impact of Welfare Reform. These include:





The Debt Team proactively help tenants remain in their own home, enabling them to feel supported
and in control of their finances, and avoiding the need for formal legal action wherever possible. To
further support customers, the team secured £604k in Discretionary Housing Payments and a
further £86k through partnership with the Yorkshire Water Community Trust.
The Tenancy Ready Team work with vulnerable applicants and tenants to help them access and
successfully maintain their tenancy, supporting them through a range of issues from tenancy
applications to accessing benefits and other financial support.
Cash Wise provide invaluable assistance for customers who are struggling to manage their money
and sustain their tenancy, providing advice on household budgeting, switching utility providers and
claiming benefit or grant entitlements.

Tenancy turnover for 2018 / 2019 was 6.4%, showing strong performance against a target of 7.5%, and
improving on the previous years’ performance of 6.5%.
Rent collection also continues to demonstrate strong performance, and is median performance
compared to peers.

Performance Measure

WDH 2016
/ 2017

WDH 2017
/ 2018

Rent collected from
current and former
tenants as a percentage
of rent due

99.2%

99.7%

Comparison to Sector Scorecard Peer Group
2017 / 2018
WDH
Upper
Median
Lower
Quartile

WDH
2018 /
2019

100.1%

99.8%

99.7%

99.35%

Median

WDH’s debt collection service is also very cost effective, with the cost per property of rent arrears and
collection at £98.60 and expecting to remain upper quartile.
2017 / 2018 Annual Housemark Data
Performance Measure

Cost per property of rent
arrears and collection

Benchmark 2017 / 2018

WDH 2017 / 2018

Upper

Median

Lower

WDH

Quartile

£119.76

£127.73

£146.34

£94.27

Upper

WDH
2018 /
2019
£98.60
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Efficient Lettings of Homes
Lettings management continues to demonstrate VFM with low costs of £39.71 per property in
2018 / 2019, expected to remain upper quartile. Re let times remain fairly constant and on target at 18
days, with performance expected to remain median quartile. Void loss has increased slightly to 1.41%
but is still anticipated to be median quartile.
2017 / 2018 Annual HouseMark Data
Benchmark 2017 / 2018

Performance Measure

WDH 2017 / 2018

WDH
2018 /
2019

Upper

Median

Lower

WDH

Quartile

£56.18

£69.59

£87.39

£38.82

Upper

£39.71

Average standard re-let time in
days

17.5

24.0

35.5

18.2

Median

18

Void rent loss as % of rent due

0.5%

1.2%

2.0%

1.3%

Median

1.4%

Cost per property of lettings

Maintaining A Good Quality Neighbourhood Environment
Estate Management

WDH’s high quality Estate Management service continues to generate VFM by creating confident
communities where people want to live and stay.
During 2018 / 2019, WDH continued to implement the action plan arising from the 2017 / 2018 Estate
Management Review, which examined whether services are cost efficient and effective in meeting
current and future customer expectations, ensuring assets are protected, and improving the community
environment.
The 2019 Tenant Survey has shown that in 2018 / 2019, 85.2% of tenants were either satisfied or very
satisfied with their neighbourhoods as a place to live. This is a slight deterioration on the 2017 / 2018
result of 88.8% and reflects an increase in people responding that they were neither satisfied nor
dissatisfied. Overall dissatisfaction also decreased, from 7.6% to 6.5%.
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Commercial Perspective: Creating a Sustainable Business
Generating Efficiencies
Reducing overheads and generating efficiencies is an important aspect of WDH’s overall approach to
VFM.
During 2018 / 2019, WDH generated over £459k in cashable efficiencies against the target of £750k.
Ensuring VFM through procurement of goods and services forms a critical part of WDH’s approach,
with £225k of the efficiencies generated from re-procurement of contracts.
During 2018 / 2019 Northern Shared Services, a cost sharing group, made a £591k contribution
towards fixed costs. This is marginally less than 2017 / 2018 at £651k and reflects member
organisations’ wishes to reduce activity as a result of concerns regarding the pending Her Majesty’s
Revenue and Customs (HMRC) decision on the tax advantages of cost sharing groups.
Headline Social Housing Cost Per Unit

Comparator

RSH VFM
Metric

The headline cost per unit demonstrates lower cost quartile performance against the sector, based on
the Global Accounts analysis published by the RSH in December 2018. Performance against Sector
Scorecard peers shows WDH’s costs as median quartile.

WDH
2016 /
2017

WDH
2017 /
2018

Comparison against
RSH Quartiles
Comparison against
Sector Scorecard
Peers

5

£3,030

2017 / 2018 Cost Quartile Comparison
Upper

Median

Lower

WDH
Quartile

£4,500

£3,400

£3,010

Lower

£2,986

WDH 2018 /
2019

£3,311
£3,346

£3,701

£2,772

Median

Performance for 2018 / 2019 anticipates a marginal increase in headline unit costs. WDH’s
performance against the sector and its peers is as expected, falling at the lower end of the median cost
quartile, reflecting the Board’s ambition to maintain its stock at the highest standard and deliver social
positive outcomes in support of the Vision.
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Strategic Report
Minimising Overhead Costs
The overall operating margin excluding the surplus from the disposal of housing properties is 19.9%
(2017 / 2018: 31.7%) and the social housing margin is 23.4% (2017 / 2018: 37.0%). The performance
during 2018 / 2019 is in line with Board expectations and outperformed the approved Business Plan
and budget for the year.

Performance
Measure

Operating margin
(social housing)

Operating margin
(overall – excluding
disposal of housing
properties)

RSH VFM
Metric

Comparative performance on the 2018 / 2019 operating margin for social housing is expected to move
from upper to lower quartile based on the 2017 / 2018 quartiles. Both the overall operating margin and
EBITDA MRI interest cover are expected to remain median performance despite reducing from
2017 / 2018’s outturn. However, this still maintains a healthy margin for potential future development in
line with the Board’s intentions.
WDH 2016
/ 2017

WDH
2017 /
2018

Comparison to Sector Scorecard Peer Group
2017 / 2018
WDH
Upper
Median
Lower
Quartile

WDH
2018 /
2019

6a

37.1%

37.0%

36.4%

32.6%

26.8%

Upper

23.4%

6b

32.1%

31.7%

33.2%

29.2%

21.1%

Median

19.9%

4

238.7%

254.4%

321.0%

237.0%

188.6%

Median

193.4%

EBITDA MRI
Interest cover %

Minimising Overhead Costs
Overhead costs as a percentage of adjusted turnover are comparatively low, being held at 7.3%,
expected to remain comfortably within the top quartile. This is despite continued significant investment
in improving the life chances of tenants, as well as delivering an increased number of revenue
generating assets.
2017 / 2018 Annual HouseMark Data
Benchmark 2017 / 2018

Performance Measure

Total overhead as % adjusted
turnover

WDH 2017 / 2018

Upper

Median

Lower

WDH

Quartile

9.0

10.5

12.0

7.2

Upper

WDH
2018 /
2019
7.3%
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Strategic Report

Improving VFM in 2019 / 2020
WDH’s Business Strategy confirms the overall target for 2019 / 2020 as securing sustainable growth
and generating a social dividend of over £71m.
If WDH is to achieve this, it is essential that the business continues to focus on improving VFM and
delivering intended efficiencies.
The key outcomes and targets against the ambitions for 2019 / 2020 as set out in the Business Strategy
are detailed below.
Strategic Objectives

Business Ambition

Business and VFM Outcomes to 2020

To be a positive force of
leadership and influence to
develop the potential of
people

Opportunities for All:
Maximise opportunities for our
people and those who want to
work for us

Sustainable Workforce:
Maintain business overheads below
7.5% of turnover
Connected Workforce:
Over 50% of training courses
delivered digitally

To be a partner of choice to
create better places to live

Building Better Places:
Invest in more new homes and
land to meet the growing need
for affordable housing and
become a leading regional
housing provider

Sustainable Homes:
100% of safety inspections
completed
Connected Homes:
Deliver 400 new homes

To be a landlord of choice
by putting the customer first

Delivering Customer
Excellence:
Create excellent customer
experience by offering a range of
services that maximise choice,
opportunity, health and wellbeing

Sustainable Communities:
Maintain tenancy turnover below
7.5%
Connected Communities:
Increase digital contacts to over
50%

To adopt best practice in
good governance

A Digital Future:
Be a digital business, and enable
customers to maximise their
digital opportunities

Sustainable Business:
Deliver efficiency savings of over
£250k
Connected Business:
Develop one new joint venture

Sustainable
Growth:
Social
Dividend target
of over £71m

The executive and Board will monitor the above throughout the year, alongside a suite of key
performance measures which will ensure that the organisation’s viability and operational performance
are maintained and enhanced.
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Strategic Report

Statement of Compliance
In preparing this strategic report and the Report of the Board, the Board has followed the principles set
out in Part 2 of the SORP updated in 2014. In accordance with the requirements of the Accounting
Direction 2015, the Board certify that it has complied with the requirements of the RSH’s Governance
and Financial Viability Standard, maintaining a G1 / V1 rating following an In Depth Assessment
completed in March 2018.
In accordance with the requirements of the RSH, the Board certifies that WDH has complied with the
requirement to maintain an Assets and Liabilities Register. The Board, in making its decisions about
public benefit and the achievement of its strategic objectives has had due regard to the public benefit
guidance when exercising any powers or duties to which the guidance is relevant.
The Strategic Report was approved by the Board on 1 August 2019 and signed on its behalf by:

Stephen Green
Chair
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Independent auditor's report to the Members of Wakefield and
District Housing Limited
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Wakefield and District Housing Limited (the ‘parent
society’) and its subsidiaries (the ‘group’) for the year ended 31 March 2019, which comprise
Consolidated and Association Statement of Comprehensive Income, Consolidated and Association
Statement of Changes in Reserves, Consolidated and Association Statement of Financial Position,
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their
preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards including Financial Reporting
Standard 102; The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).
In our opinion, the financial statements:



give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and parent society's affairs as at 31 March
2019 and of the group’s and parent society's income and expenditure for the year then ended;
have been properly prepared in accordance with the Co-operative and Community Benefit
Societies Act 2014, the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008, and the Accounting Direction for
Private Registered Providers of Social Housing 2015.

Basis for opinion
We have been appointed as auditor under the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014
and report in accordance with regulations made under that Act. We conducted our audit in accordance
with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the society in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s
Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require
us to report to you where:
 the board’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is not appropriate; or
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Independent auditor's report to the Members of Wakefield and
District Housing Limited


the board has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt about the group’s or parent society’s ability to continue to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when
the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Other information
The board is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Report of the Board and the Strategic Report, set out on pages 3 to 10 and 13 to 32
other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial
statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in
our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit
of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a
material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Co-operative and Community
Benefit Societies Act 2014 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:
 a satisfactory system of control over transactions has not been maintained; or
 the parent society has not kept proper accounting records;
 the financial statements are not in agreement with the books of account; or
 we have not received all the information and explanations we need for our audit.

Responsibilities of the board for the financial statements
As explained more fully in the Statement of the Responsibilities of the Board set out on page 11, the
board is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give
a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the board determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.
In preparing the financial statements, the board is responsible for assessing the group’s and parent
society’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the board either intend to liquidate the
group or parent society or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements.
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Independent auditor's report to the Members of Wakefield and
District Housing Limited
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description
forms part of our auditor’s report.

Use of our report
This report is made solely to the society's members, as a body, in accordance with regulations made
under Sections 87 and 98(7) of the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014. Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the society's members those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the society and the society's
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Grant Thornton UK LLP
Statutory Auditor, Chartered Accountants
Leeds
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME
For the year ended 31 March 2019
Note

31 March
2019
£’000

31 March
2018
£’000

Turnover

3

155,561

155,047

Operating expenditure
Operating costs
Impairment loss
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment

3
3
6

(124,497)
(184)
2,732

(105,815)
(91)
1,016

Operating surplus

3

33,612

50,157

15
17
7
8

(600)
51
411
(18,582)

(705)
241
306
(19,147)

14,892

30,852

(52)

(87)

14,840

30,765

20,895
(8,720)

(8,929)
6,325

27,015

28,161

Loss on revaluation of investment property
Share of operating surplus in joint venture
Interest receivable and other income
Interest payable and financing costs
Surplus before taxation
Taxation

11

Surplus for the year
Unrealised gain / (loss) on revaluation of housing properties
Actuarial (loss) / gain in respect of pension schemes
Total comprehensive income

12
9

The Financial Statements were issued and approved by the Board on 1 August 2019 and signed on its
behalf by:

Stephen Green
Chair

Kathryn Cooper
Vice Chair

Juliet Craven
Secretary

The consolidated results relate wholly to continuing activities.
The accompanying notes 1 to 32 from part of these Financial Statements
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ASSOCIATION STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 March 2019
Note

31 March
2019
£’000

31 March
2018
£’000

Turnover

3

155,551

154,837

Operating expenditure
Operating costs
Impairment loss
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment

3
3
6

(124,487)
(184)
2,732

(105,605)
(91)
1,016

Operating surplus

3

33,612

50,157

15
7
8

(600)
411
(18,582)

(705)
306
(19,147)

14,841

30,611

(52)

(87)

14,789

30,524

20,895
(8,720)

(8,929)
6,325

26,964

27,920

Loss on revaluation of investment property
Interest receivable and other income
Interest payable and financing costs
Surplus before taxation
Taxation

11

Surplus for the year
Unrealised gain / (loss) on revaluation of housing properties
Actuarial (loss) / gain in respect of pension schemes
Total comprehensive income

12
9

The Financial Statements were issued and approved by the Board on 1 August 2019 and signed on its
behalf by:

Stephen Green
Chair

Kathryn Cooper
Vice Chair

Juliet Craven
Secretary

The Association’s results relate wholly to continuing activities.

The accompanying notes 1 to 32 from part of these Financial Statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN RESERVES
For the year ended 31 March 2019

Balance as at 1 April 2017
Surplus for the year
Actuarial gain on defined benefit pension scheme
Unrealised loss on revaluation of housing
properties
Other comprehensive income

Income and
expenditure
reserve
£’000

Revaluation
reserve

Total

£’000

£’000

131,270

161,951

293,221

30,765

-

30,765

6,325

-

6,325

-

(8,929)

(8,929)

6,325

(8,929)

(2,604)

2,410

(2,410)

-

170,770

150,612

321,382

14,840
(8,720)

-

-

20,895

20,895

(8,720)

20,895

12,175

1,531

(1,531)

-

178,421

169,976

348,397

Reserves transfers:
Transfer from revaluation reserve to income and
expenditure reserve
Balance at 31 March 2018
Surplus for the year
Actuarial loss on defined benefit pension scheme
Unrealised gain on revaluation of housing
properties
Other comprehensive income

14,840
(8,720)

Reserves transfers:
Transfer from revaluation reserve to income and
expenditure reserve
Balance at 31 March 2019

The accompanying notes 1 to 32 from part of these Financial Statements
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ASSOCIATION STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN RESERVES
For the year ended 31 March 2019

Balance as at 1 April 2017
Surplus for the year
Actuarial gain on defined benefit pension scheme
Unrealised loss on revaluation of housing
properties

Income and
expenditure
reserve
£’000

Revaluation
reserve

Total

£’000

£’000

131,020

161,951

292,971

30,524

-

30,524

6,325

-

6,325

-

(8,929)

(8,929)

6,325

(8,929)

(2,604)

Transfer from revaluation reserve to income and
expenditure reserve

2,410

(2,410)

Balance at 31 March 2018
Surplus for the year
Actuarial loss on defined benefit pension scheme

170,279
14,789
(8,720)

Other comprehensive income
Reserves transfers:

Unrealised gain on revaluation of housing
properties
Other comprehensive income

-

150,612
-

320,891
14,789
(8,720)

20,895

20,895

(8,720)

20,895

12,175

1,531

(1,531)

-

177,879

169,976

347,855

Reserves transfers:
Transfer from revaluation reserve to income and
expenditure reserve
Balance at 31 March 2019

The accompanying notes 1 to 32 from part of these Financial Statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
At 31 March 2019
Note

2019
£’000

2018
£’000

12
13
14
15
16
17

708,558
15,204
5,703
11,850
147
4,042

667,947
15,044
2,135
12,000
153
3,241

745,504

700,520

4,625
10,853
87,572

5,934
5,245
80,121

103,050

91,300

(19,346)

(15,400)

83,704

75,900

829,208

776,420

21

(417,952)

(412,269)

9

(62,859)

(42,769)

Total net assets

348,397

321,382

Reserves
Income and expenditure reserve
Revaluation reserve

178,421

170,770

169,976

150,612

Total reserves

348,397

321,382

-

-

348,397

321,382

Fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets - housing properties
Tangible fixed assets - other
Intangible assets
Investment properties
Homebuy loans receivable
Investment in joint venture
Current assets
Properties held for sale
Trade and other debtors
Cash and cash equivalents

18
19

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

20

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities
Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year
Provisions for liabilities
Defined benefit pension liability

Amounts attributable to minority interests

17

The Financial Statements were issued and approved by the Board on 1 August 2019 and signed on its
behalf by:

Stephen Green
Chair

Kathryn Cooper
Vice Chair

Juliet Craven
Secretary

The accompanying notes 1 to 32 from part of these Financial Statements
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ASSOCIATION STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
At 31 March 2019
Fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets - housing properties
Tangible fixed assets - other
Intangible assets
Investment properties
Homebuy loans receivable
Investment in subsidiary
Investment in joint venture
Current assets
Properties held for sale
Trade and other debtors
Cash and cash equivalents

2019
£’000

2018
£’000

708,558
15,204
5,703
11,850
147
3,500

667,947
15,044
2,135
12,000
153
2,750

744,962

700,029

4,625
11,407
86,883

5,934
5,180
79,926

102,915

91,040

(19,211)

(15,140)

83,704

75,900

828,666

775,929

21

(417,952)

(412,269)

9

(62,859)

(42,769)

12
13
14
15
16
17
17

18
19

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

20

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities
Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year
Provisions for liabilities
Defined benefit pension liability
Total net assets

347,855

320,891

Reserves
Income and expenditure reserve
Revaluation reserve

177,879
169,976

170,279
150,612

Total reserves

347,855

320,891

The Financial Statements were issued and approved by the Board on 1 August 2019 and signed on its
behalf by:

Stephen Green
Chair

Kathryn Cooper
Vice Chair

Juliet Craven
Secretary

The accompanying notes 1 to 32 from part of these Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statement OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 March 2019
Note

31 March
2019
£’000

31 March
2018
£’000

58,355

76,216

(48,030)
(1,042)
(3,818)
(499)
7,640
3,818
411
(750)
(42,270)

(39,566)
(2,299)
(209)
6,258
1,462
208
(1,300)
(35,446)

(17,540)
10,000
(1,100)
6
(8,634)

(18,123)
(2,200)
49
(20,274)

7,451

20,496

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

80,121

59,625

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

87,572

80,121

Net cash generated from operating activities

27

Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase and refurbishment of tangible fixed assets - housing
properties
Purchase of tangible fixed assets - other
Purchase of intangible assets
Additions to investment properties
Proceeds from sale of tangible fixed assets
Grant received
Interest received
Investment in joint venture
Cash flow from financing activities
Interest paid
Loan drawdown
Repayment of borrowings
Homebuy loans received
Net change in cash and cash equivalents

The accompanying notes 1 to 32 form part of these Financial Statements

The accompanying notes 1 to 32 from part of these Financial Statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements
1.

Legal Status

Wakefield and District Housing Limited (WDH) is a registered provider of social housing registered
under the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014, with a registration number 7530,
and is an exempt charity.
WDH Solutions Limited (WDHS) is a wholly owned trading subsidiary of WDH and is incorporated in
England under the Companies Act 2006 as a Private Limited Company limited by guarantee. The main
activity of WDHS is to carry out commercial activities.
Northern Shared Services Limited (NSS) is a subsidiary company incorporated in England under the
Companies Act 2006 as a private company limited by shares. WDH holds a 51% share; Together
Housing Association holds 40%; Arches Housing Association holds 1%, and 8% of the shares are
unallocated. The company has been established to provide repairs and maintenance, void repairs and
gas maintenance services to its members.
Bridge Homes (Yorkshire) LLP is a Limited Liability Partnership incorporated in England under the
Companies Act 2006. WDH and Wakefield Council incorporated the joint venture, Bridge Homes
(Yorkshire) LLP. WDH has a 50% interest and Wakefield Council has a 50% interest. The joint venture
has been established to build homes for sale.
The registered office of WDH and its subsidiary and joint venture undertakings is Merefield House,
Whistler Drive, Castleford, West Yorkshire, WF10 5HX.

2.

Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting
The Financial Statements of the Group and the Association are prepared following the historical cost
convention, amended for valuation of housing properties, and in accordance with UK Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (UK GAAP) including Financial Reporting Standard 102 (FRS 102), the Housing SORP
2014: Statement of Recommended Practice for Registered Social Housing Providers and complies with the
Accounting Direction for Private Registered Providers of Social Housing 2015. There were no material
departures from that standard.
The Financial Statements are presented in Sterling (£’000) which is also the functional currency.
The individual accounts of the Association have adopted the following disclosure exemptions:



the requirement to present a statement of cash flows and related notes;
financial instrument disclosures, including:
- categories of financial instruments; and
- items of income, expenses, gains or losses relating to financial instruments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
2.

Accounting Policies (continued)

Going Concern
The Group’s business activities, its current financial position and factors likely to affect its future
development are set out within the Report of the Board. The Group has strong positive operational
cash flows and has in place long term debt facilities which provide adequate resources to finance
committed investment and development programmes, along with the Group’s day to day operations.
The long term Business Plan shows that these debt facilities can be serviced whilst continuing to
comply with the lenders’ covenants.
After making enquiries, the Board has a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources
to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, being a period of at least 12 months after
the date on which the Report and Financial Statements are signed. For this reason, it continues to
adopt the going concern basis in the Financial Statements.
Public Benefit Entity
WDH is a public benefit entity in accordance with FRS 102. The Board, in making their decisions about
public benefit and what has been done to achieve the entity’s purpose, have had due regard to the
public benefit guidance when exercising any powers or duties to which the guidance is relevant.
Significant Management Judgements and Estimates
The preparation of the Financial Statements requires management to make significant judgements and
estimates. The items in the Financial Statements where these judgements and estimates have been
made are as follows:
Significant Management Judgements
The following are significant management judgements made in applying the accounting policies of the
Group that have the most significance on the Financial Statements.
Impairment

From 1 April 2016, WDH reduced social housing rents by 1% per annum and will continue to do so in
each year until 2019 / 2020, in accordance with the Welfare Reform and Work Act 2016. Compliance
with the new rent regime has resulted in a loss of net income for social and affordable rents. This is an
indicator for a potential impairment in the value of housing properties. WDH have also considered other
potential indicators of impairment such as properties earmarked for demolition. As a result, WDH
estimated the recoverable amount of certain housing properties as follows:





Determined the level at which recoverable amount is assessed.
Estimated the recoverable amount.
Calculated the carrying amount of the asset.
Compared the carrying amount to the recoverable amount to determine if an impairment loss
has occurred.

The recoverable amount is the higher of the assets value in use and fair value less costs to sell. The
impairment loss recognised in the year is shown in note 12.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
2.

Accounting Policies (continued)

Significant Management Judgements (continued)
Capitalisation of Property Development Costs

Capitalisation of development costs requires the exercise of judgement. After capitalisation,
management monitor the asset and considers whether changes indicate that an impairment provision is
required. The total amount capitalised in the year is shown in note 12.
Capitalisation of Property Improvement Costs

Capitalisation of improvement costs requires the exercise of judgement in the allocation of those costs
to be capitalised and those to be expensed. During improvement, work in progress is apportioned
based on estimations derived from past experience of similar schemes. On receipt of the Final
Account, an analysis of costs, on an individual component basis, determines the actual allocation of
costs as being capital or revenue expenditure.
Categorisation of Properties as Investment Properties

The use of the asset has been considered by management when classifying assets as investment
properties or property, plant and equipment. Assets classified as investment properties are shown in
note 15. Assets classified as property, plant and equipment are shown in note 13.
Classification of Loans as Basic

WDH has a significant portfolio of fixed rate loans, all of which have both the break gain and a broadly
“symmetrical” clause in relation to break costs which may arise if a decision is made by the Board for an
early repayment of the loan. The fixed rate loans are all embedded and there are no provisions
whereby the fixed rate can be separated from the loan.
In a prepayment scenario with a break gain, the loan agreement provides for repayment of the capital at
par. Any break gain payable by a lender would be in relation to future interest periods only. Therefore,
whilst it is possible that a lender could suffer a loss, the loss would not be attributable to either the
current or prior periods.
It is important to note that there are no cash payments or receipts for WDH in relation to the break
clause.
Management has considered the terms of the loan agreement and concluded that all loans meet the
classification of basic financial instruments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
2.

Accounting Policies (continued)

Significant Management Estimates
Valuation of Housing Properties

Management reviews its valuation of housing properties at each reporting date, based on a formal
valuation report. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to the discount rate, the cost of property
maintenance and future cash flows. However, the valuation is carried out by professional external
valuers, Savills. Future maintenance spend is dictated by the most recent stock condition survey.
Valued properties totalled £697m at the year end.
Useful Lives of Depreciable Assets

Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable assets at each reporting date, based
on the expected use of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to changes to internal or
external standards which may require more frequent replacement of key components of housing
property. Accumulated depreciation at 31 March 2019 is shown in notes 12 and 13.
Defined Benefit Pension Obligation (DBPO)

Management’s estimate of the DBPO is based on a number of critical underlying assumptions such as
standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary increases. Variation
in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBPO amount and the annual defined benefit
expenses (as analysed in note 9). The valuation is carried out by external professional actuaries,
Aon Hewitt. The liability at 31 March 2019 was £62.9m.
Recoverability of Debtors - Bad Debt Provision

Management estimates the recoverability of debtors on a line by line basis based on past experience.
Payment plans in place and the level of housing benefit are also taken into consideration when
assessing the level of the provision. The actual recoverability of the debtor may differ from the estimate
made.
Basis of Consolidation

Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of
FRS 102. The Group accounts consolidate the results of WDH and all its subsidiaries at 31 March
2019 using acquisition accounting. The Group accounts also include its joint venture using the gross
equity method. Transactions within the Group have been eliminated on consolidation.
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Accounting Policies (continued)

Investment in Subsidiaries

The consolidated Financial Statements incorporate the entities controlled by the Group, these are
WDHS and NSS. Control is achieved where the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity to obtain benefits from its activities.
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment in the accounts of the
Association. The investment in WDHS is £nil and in NSS is £51.
Consistent accounting policies are applied across the Group.
Investment in Joint Venture

The joint venture has been accounted for in the consolidated Financial Statements using the gross
equity method. The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted in each year by the Association’s
share of the results of the joint venture less the Association's share of any relevant gains or losses, and
any other changes in the joint venture’s net assets including distributions to its owners. The
Association’s share of the joint venture’s results is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income. In the Association, the investment has been recognised at cost.
Turnover

Turnover comprises of rental income receivable in the year; service charges; income from shared
ownership first tranche sales; other services included at invoiced values (excluding VAT where
recoverable) of goods and services supplied in the year; revenue grants receivable in the year and
capital grants.
Revenue Recognition

Rental income is recognised from the point when properties under development reach practical
completion or otherwise become available for letting, net of any voids.
The Group adopts a fixed method for calculating and charging service charges to its tenants and a
variable method for leaseholders. Income is recognised based on the amounts chargeable.
Expenditure is recorded when a service is provided.
Income from first tranche sales is recognised at the point of legal completion of the sale. Revenue
grants are receivable when the conditions for receipt of grant funding have been met. Capital grants
are recognised as revenue on completion of the property. Charges for support services funded under
Housing Support are recognised as they fall due under the contractual arrangements with the
Administering Authority.
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Accounting Policies (continued)

Taxation

WDH is a charitable Association and therefore is not subject to corporation tax on surpluses derived
from charitable activities.
Any surplus on non-charitable activities is taxed.
WDHS is subject to corporation tax. WDHS gift aids any profits to WDH and there is no residual profit
for NSS, as it is a cost sharing entity.
Value Added Tax (VAT)

The Group is registered for Value Added Tax (VAT). The Group charges VAT on some of its income and
can recover part of the VAT it incurs on expenditure. The Financial Statements include VAT to the extent
that it is suffered by the Group and not recoverable from HM Revenue and Customs. The balance of VAT
payable or recoverable at the year end is included as a current liability or asset.
In respect of major refurbishment expenditure works undertaken there is a VAT Shelter Agreement,
approved by HMRC, against which WDH is able to recover the VAT incurred on qualifying first time
expenditure. Under the VAT Shelter agreement, a proportion of the receipts from HMRC is payable to
Wakefield Council as part of the Transfer Agreement. VAT recoverable under the VAT Shelter and
retained by the Association is treated as a windfall receipt annually and credited against revenue
expenditure. Any amounts due from HMRC under the VAT Shelter Agreement are shown as other
debtors and any amounts payable to Wakefield Council are shown as creditors.
HMRC has approved the implementation of a Special Method Partial Exemption Scheme from the date of
transfer.
Interest Payable

Interest payable is charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the current year. Interest is
not capitalised on borrowings to finance the Improvement and New Build Programmes.
Homebuy Loans

Loans of up to 15% of the purchase price have been provided to individuals to assist in purchasing a
WDH property built for outright sale. The loan is a secured loan and is due to be repaid after five years
after which interest will be charged on any outstanding loan balance. WDH does not receive any
Homebuy grant directly.
WDH have provided a loan secured against equity to tenants allowing them to buy into the improvement
programme. Loans are provided up to the value of works required.
Homebuy loans are treated as public benefit entity concessionary loans. They are initially recognised
as a loan at the amount paid to the purchaser and are subsequently updated to reflect accrued interest.
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Financial Instruments

The Group only enters into basic financial instrument transactions that result in the recognition of
financial assets and liabilities such as trade and other debtors, trade and other creditors and loans from
banks.
Debt instruments (payable after more than one year), including loans, are initially measured at the
present value of future cash flows and subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
Debt instruments that are payable or receivable within one year, typically trade creditors and trade
debtors (other than those on payment arrangements), are measured, initially and subsequently, at the
undiscounted amount of the cash or other consideration, expected to be paid or received.
Financial assets that are measured at cost and amortised cost are assessed at the end of each
financial year for objective evidence of impairment. If objective evidence of impairment is found, an
impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
For financial assets measured at amortised cost, the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between an asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated cash flows discounted at the
asset's original effective interest rate.
Financial assets and liabilities are offset, and the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial
Position, when there is an enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
Debtors

Short term debtors are measured at transaction price, less any impairment.
Where debtors are on payment plans, the balance is shown at its present value, discounted at a market
rate, obtainable by the tenants.
Creditors

Short term trade creditors are measured at the transaction price. Other financial liabilities, including
bank loans, are measured at amortised cost.
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Pensions

WDH participates in the LGPS, a defined benefit scheme. The LGPS is a multi-employer scheme with
more than one participating employer. The scheme is administered by the WYPF under the regulations
governing the LGPS. Triennial actuarial valuations of the pension scheme are performed by an
independent, professionally qualified actuary, using the projected unit method.
For the WYPF, scheme assets are measured at fair value. Scheme liabilities are measured on an
actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and are discounted at appropriate high quality
corporate bond rates. The net surplus or deficit is presented separately from other net assets in the
Statement of Financial Position. A net surplus would be recognised only to the extent that it is
recoverable by the Group through reduced contributions or through refunds from the plan.
The current service cost and costs from settlements and curtailments are charged against the operating
surplus. Past service costs are recognised in the current reporting year. Net interest costs are
calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability and are recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income as a finance cost. Re-measurements are reported in Other
Comprehensive Income. Refer to note 9 for more details.
Housing Properties

Housing properties are properties held for the provision of social housing or to otherwise provide social
benefit. Housing properties are principally available for rent and properties are stated at valuation.
Completed housing properties are stated at fair value (EUV-SH) at the date of valuation, less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss. Revaluation of the properties
is undertaken every year.
WDH has an investment programme to improve the condition of its housing stock. Improvements are
works which result in an increase in the net income, such as an increase in rental income, a reduction
in future maintenance costs, or results in a significant extension of the useful economic life of the
property in the business. Housing properties undergoing major refurbishment are included in the
valuation.
Housing properties under construction are stated at cost. The cost includes acquiring the land and
buildings and property development.
Salary costs of employees directly attributable to developing new build schemes have been capitalised
based on the time spent on each scheme.
Works to existing properties that replace a component that has been treated separately for depreciation
purposes, along with those works that result in an increase in net rental income over the lives of the
properties thereby enhancing the economic benefits of the assets, are capitalised as improvements.

Wakefield and District Housing Limited - Community Benefit Society number 7530 - Report and Financial Statements | 50

Notes to the Financial Statements
2.

Accounting Policies (continued)

Housing Properties (continued)

Shared ownership properties are split proportionally between current and fixed assets based on the
element relating to expected first tranche sales. The first tranche proportion is classed as a current
asset. Related sales proceeds are included in turnover, and the remaining element is classed as a
fixed asset and included in housing properties at valuation, less any provisions needed for depreciation
or impairment.
HomeSpace Properties

In previous years WDH had an agreement with the local authority to purchase properties at market
value subject to the receipt of a capital grant from the local authority, the intended social benefit being a
reduction in homelessness. These properties were separately classified within social housing
properties as they were available for rent by those deemed by the local authority to be homeless.
In March 2019, WDH purchased Wakefield Council’s stake in the project. The Council agreed to
remove the restriction on title allowing WDH to take the properties into affordable rented housing stock.
At the year end, HomeSpace properties were therefore transferred into Social Housing Properties Held
for Letting and revalued as affordable rented stock.
Commuted Sum Properties

WDH has an agreement with the local authority to purchase properties at market value, subject to the
receipt of a contribution from the local authority. These properties are classified as social housing
properties as they are available to rent at social rent. Commuted sum properties are held at valuation
and revalued every year. The contribution received from Wakefield Council for commuted sum
properties is treated as capital grant, accounted for using the performance model and recognised as
income when the performance conditions are met. In this case the grant is recognised as income on
completion of the property.
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Investment Properties
Investment properties consist of commercial properties and other properties not held for social benefit
or for use in the business. Investment properties are measured at cost on initial recognition and
subsequently at fair value as at the year end, with changes in fair value recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.
Government Grants
Government grants include grants receivable from the Regulator of Social Housing, local authorities,
and other government organisations. A grant which does not impose specified future performance
conditions is recognised as revenue when the grant proceeds are received or receivable.
A grant that imposes specified future performance related conditions on the Group is recognised only
when these conditions are met. A grant received before the revenue recognition criteria are satisfied is
recognised as a liability. For Social Housing Grant this means that grant is recognised as revenue on
completion of the property.
Grant due from government organisations or received in advance is included as current assets or
liabilities.
Government grants received for housing properties are subordinated to the repayment of loans by
agreement with the Regulator of Social Housing. On the sale of a property the grant may be repayable.
However, it is normally available to be recycled and credited to a Recycled Capital Grant Fund and
included in the Statement of Financial Position in creditors.
Other Grants
As with government grants, grants received from non-government sources are recognised using the
performance model. A grant which does not impose specified future performance conditions is
recognised as revenue when the grant proceeds are received or receivable. A grant that imposes
specified future performance related conditions is recognised only when these conditions are met. A
grant received before the revenue recognition criteria are satisfied is recognised as a liability.
Depreciation of Housing Properties
The Group separately identifies the major components of its housing properties held for letting, and
charges depreciation, so as to write down the cost of each component to its estimated residual value,
on a straight line basis, over its estimated useful economic life.
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Depreciation of Housing Properties (continued)
The Group depreciates the major components of its freehold and leasehold housing properties at the
following annual rates:
Structure
Roofs
Flat roofs
Kitchens
Bathrooms
Windows and doors
Heating
Electrical
Lifts

Existing Properties
50 years
50 years
30 years
20 years
30 years
30 years
30 years
30 years
30 years

New Build
100 years
70 years
30 years
20 years
30 years
30 years
30 years
30 years
30 years

Freehold land is not depreciated.
The retained proportion of shared ownership properties and properties held as intermediate rent are
depreciated over the estimated useful life of the property as a complete unit in line with the rates above.
Schemes Under Construction
Schemes under construction relate to new build properties that are not yet complete.
Impairment
Existing housing properties are reviewed for impairment on an annual basis. Other fixed assets are
reviewed for impairment if there is an indication that impairment may have occurred. Where there is
evidence of impairment, fixed assets are written down to the recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of the assets value in use and fair value less costs to sell. Any such write down is
charged to operating surplus unless it is a reversal of a past revaluation surplus, in which case it is
taken to the revaluation reserve.
Properties for Sale
Properties developed for shared ownership first tranche sales are included in current assets as they are
intended to be sold. The split between housing properties and properties for sale is determined by the
percentage of the property to be sold under a first tranche disposal. Shared ownership first tranche
sales are initially valued at cost, which comprises of materials, direct labour and direct development
overheads, then subsequently at cost less any impairment.
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Other Tangible Fixed Assets
Other tangible fixed assets are measured at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses.
Depreciation is provided on a straight line basis on the cost of other tangible fixed assets to write them
down to their estimated residual values over their expected useful life. No depreciation is provided on
freehold land.
The principal annual rates used for other assets are:
Plant and equipment racking
Plant and equipment
Computer and office equipment
Motor vehicles
Furniture, fixtures and fittings
Solar Panels
Freehold buildings

4 years
5 years
5 years
5 years
10 years
20 years
50 years

Gains or losses arising on the disposal of other tangible fixed assets are determined as the difference
between the disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets and are recognised as part of the
surplus or deficit for the year.
Intangible Assets: Software Development Costs
WDH continues to develop its operating software which is used to support the Group’s activities and as
a management tool for monitoring and evaluating performance. Design and content development costs
are capitalised to the extent that they deliver demonstrable benefits to the Group and are amortised
over five years. Ongoing costs of maintaining and operating the software are charged as other
operating costs as incurred.
Impairment of intangible assets beyond the residual value is written off to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income. Intangible assets are amortised over five years.
Leased Assets
All of the Group’s lease obligations are operating leases. Rentals paid under operating leases are
charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income, on a straight line basis over the lease term.
The aggregate benefit of lease incentives (such as a rent free period) is recognised as a reduction to
the expense over the lease term on a straight line basis.
Holiday Pay Accrual
The Group recognises a provision for annual leave accrued by employees, as a result of services
rendered in the current year, and which employees are entitled to carry forward and use by the end of
April, unless there are exceptional circumstances preventing them from doing so. The provision is
measured at salary costs payable for the period of absence.
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Cyclical Maintenance
The cost of cyclical maintenance and internal decorations is taken to the Statement of Comprehensive
Income when the work is performed.
Revaluation Reserve
When housing properties are revalued, the difference between the revaluation amount and the carrying
value of the land and structure elements of housing properties is credited to the housing property
revaluation reserve.
Depreciation of revalued properties is calculated at each year end. The difference between historical
cost depreciation and the valuation depreciation is transferred between the revaluation reserve and the
income and expenditure reserve. This is shown within the Statement of Changes in Reserves.
On disposal or impairment of properties the difference between the historical cost and the valuation of
the properties is transferred between the revaluation and the income and expenditure reserve. This is
shown within the Statement of Changes in Reserves.
Disposal Proceeds Fund
The Disposal Proceeds Fund is a fund used to recycle the proceeds of sale under ‘RTA’ procedures.
From 7 April 2017, under the Housing and Planning Act 2016, additions to the fund have been
abolished. However, balances accrued to this date must be used in accordance with Disposal
Proceeds Fund requirements until at the latest, 6 April 2020.
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Turnover, Cost of Sales, Operating Costs and Operating Surplus /
(Deficit)

Group – continuing activities
Year ended 31 March 2019
Turnover
Social housing lettings
Other social housing activities
Supporting people
First tranche low cost home ownership sales
Development costs not capitalised
Gain on disposal of assets
Other*

Activities other than social housing

£’000
137,736

-

(105,550)

32,186

269
7,797
4,901

(7,530)
-

(269)
(1,578)
2,732
(4,919)

267
(1,578)
2,732
(18)

12,967

(7,530)

(4,034)

1,403

4,858

-

(4,835)

23

(114,419)

33,612

155,561

(7,530)

Operating
Costs
£’000

Year ended 31 March 2018

£’000
137,869

Cost of
Sales
£’000
-

Operating
Costs
£’000
(86,916)

Operating
surplus/
(deficit)
£’000
50,953

998
5,713
5,055

(5,954)
-

(991)
(9)
(1,576)
1,016
(5,052)

7
(250)
(1,576)
1,016
3

11,766

(5,954)

(6,612)

(800)

(5,408)

4

(98,936)

50,157

Turnover
Social housing lettings
Other social housing activities
Supporting people
First tranche low cost home ownership sales
Development costs not capitalised
Gain on disposal of assets
Other*

Activities other than social housing

Operating
surplus/
(deficit)
£’000

Cost of
Sales
£’000

5,412
155,047

(5,954)

* Other income and operating costs relate mainly to the activities through Northern Shared Services Limited, the cost
sharing entity.
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Turnover, Cost of Sales, Operating Costs and Operating Surplus /
(Deficit) (continued)

Association – continuing activities
Year ended 31 March 2019

Social housing lettings
Other social housing activities
Supporting people
First tranche low cost home ownership sales
Development costs not capitalised
Gain on disposal of assets
Other*

Activities other than social housing

Operating
surplus /
(deficit)
£’000

Turnover
£’000

Cost of
Sales
£’000

Operating
Costs
£’000

137,736

-

(105,550)

32,186

269
7,797
4,891

(7,530)
-

(269)
(1,578)
2,732
(4,909)

267
(1,578)
2,732
(18)

12,957

(7,530)

(4,024)

1,403

4,858

-

(4,835)

23

155,551

(7,530)

(114,409)

33,612

Year ended 31 March 2018
Turnover
Social housing lettings
Other social housing activities
Supporting people
First tranche low cost home ownership sales
Development costs not capitalised
Gain on disposal of assets
Other*

Activities other than social housing

£’000
137,869

Cost of
Sales
£’000
-

Operating
Costs
£’000
(86,916)

Operating
surplus/
(deficit)
£’000
50,953

998
5,713
4,975

(5,954)
-

(991)
(9)
(1,576)
1,016
(4,972)

7
(250)
(1,576)
1,016
3

11,686

(5,954)

(6,532)

(800)

(5,278)

4

(98,726)

50,157

5,282
154,837

(5,954)

* Other income and operating costs relate mainly to activities through Northern Shared Services Limited, the cost sharing
entity.
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Turnover, Cost of Sales, Operating Costs and Operating Surplus /
(Deficit) (continued)

Particulars of income and expenditure from social housing lettings
Group and Association

General
Needs
Housing
£’000

Low Cost Home
Ownership
£’000

2019
£’000

2018
£’000

5,558
2,634

684
5

130,846
3,701

132,128
3,624

75

530

3,189

2,117

128,250

8,267

1,219

137,736

137,869

(39,352)
(1,521)
(17,033)
(2,405)
(13,691)
(1,257)
(167)

(2,038)
(3,295)
(579)
(45)
845
(56)
(17)

(150)
(7)
(14)
(12)
(7)
-

(41,540)
(4,823)
(17,626)
(2,462)
(12,846)
(1,320)
(184)

(34,412)
(4,889)
(15,458)
(2,421)
(7,206)
(1,221)
(91)

(22,343)

(1,188)

(87)

(23,618)

(19,624)

(1,060)

(65)

(6)

(1,131)

(1,595)

(98,829)

(6,438)

(283)

(105,550)

(86,916)

29,421

1,829

936

32,186

50,953

1,445

616

2

2,063

2,364

Turnover from social housing lettings
Rent receivable net of
identifiable service charges
124,604
Service charge income
1,062
Government grants taken to
income
2,584
Turnover from social
housing lettings
Management
Service charge costs
Routine maintenance
Planned maintenance
Major repairs expenditure
Bad debts
Impairment of housing
properties
Depreciation of housing
properties
Deprecation of other fixed
assets
Operating expenditure on
social housing lettings
Operating surplus on social
housing lettings

Void losses

Supported
Housing
And
Housing
For
Older
People
£’000

Wakefield and District Housing Limited - Community Benefit Society number 7530 - Report and Financial Statements | 58

Notes to the Financial Statements
4.

Accommodation in Management and Development

Group and Association
At the end of the year accommodation in management for each class of accommodation was as follows:
2019
No.

2018
No.

Social housing
General needs housing
Social rent
Affordable rent
Supported housing and housing for older people
Low cost home ownership

27,600
1,664
1,676
492

27,684
1,426
1,714
419

Total owned

31,432

31,243

7

52

31,439

31,295

586

584

Accommodation managed for others
Total accommodation

Accommodation in development at the year end

WDH manages no units (2018: 45 units) to alleviate homelessness in the Wakefield district, the 45 units, to
alleviate homelessness, managed by WDH were taken into general needs stock during the year; four Alms
Houses for Wrays Homes (2018: 4 units), a registered charity; and three properties for the Megson Trust
(2018: 3 units).
During the year WDH serviced 13,223 premises through the NSS cost sharing group: of these, 12,081 were
serviced for Together Housing Association and 1,142 for Arches Housing.
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Operating Surplus

This is arrived at after charging:
Group




Depreciation of housing properties
Depreciation and amortisation of other
tangible fixed assets
Impairment of housing properties
Operating lease rentals:
Land and buildings
Office equipment and computers
Motor vehicles
Fees payable to the Group’s
auditor for the audit of the
financial statements of:
Association
Subsidiaries and joint venture







Fees Payable to the Group’s
auditor in respect of:
RTB certification
Loan covenant work
VAT sharing agreement work
Other audit services
Tax compliance services





Internal auditor’s remuneration

6.

Association
2019
2018
£’000
£’000
23,618
19,624

2019
£’000
23,618

2018
£’000
19,624

1,131
184

1,595
91

1,131
184

1,595
91

624
50
1,823

639
48
1,809

624
50
1,823

639
48
1,809

38
10
48

32
9
41

38
38

32
32

1
1
1
3
3
9
78

1
1
1
2
3
8
92

1
1
1
3
2
8
78

1
1
1
2
2
7
92

2019
£’000
7,555
(4,511)

2018
£’000
6,633
(5,093)

3,044
(347)
2,697
35
2,732

1,540
(405)
1,135
(119)
1,016

Sale of Fixed Assets

Group and Association

Disposal proceeds – housing properties
Carrying value of fixed assets at valuation
Capital grant recycled (note 22)
Surplus / (deficit) on sale of other assets
Surplus on sale of fixed assets
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Interest Receivable and Other Income

Group and Association

Unwinding of discount for fair value of debtors
Interest receivable

8.

2019
£’000

2018
£’000

44

98

367

208

411

306

2019
£’000

2018
£’000

1,041

1,024

17,540

18,123

1

-

18,582

19,147

Interest Payable and Similar Charges

Group and Association

Defined benefit pension charge
Loan interest
Interest on recycled capital grant fund

9.

Employees

Average monthly number of employees expressed based on 37 hours a week in full
time equivalents:
Group and Association
2019
2018
No
No
Administration
Technical services
Housing, support and care

Employee costs:
Group and Association

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Other pension costs

397
604
279

367
614
277

1,281

1,258

2019
£’000

2018
£’000

40,564
3,816
5,498

37,495
3,612
5,219

49,878

46,326
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Employees (continued)

The full time equivalent number of employees who received remuneration (including
Executive Directors):
2019
2018
No.
No.
£60,001 to £70,000
3
3
£70,001 to £80,000
6
4
£80,001 to £90,000
6
6
£90,001 to £100,000
1
£110,001 to £120,000
1
£120,001 to £130,000
1
£130,001 to £140,000
1
1
£160,001 to £170,000
1
£170,001 to £180,000
1
-

West Yorkshire Pension Fund
WDH’s employees are entitled to be members of the LGPS.
The LGPS is a multi-employer scheme with more than one participating employer. The scheme is
administered by the WYPF under the regulations governing the LGPS. It is a defined benefit scheme.
Triennial and FRS 102 actuarial valuations of the pension scheme are performed by an independent,
professionally qualified actuary. The most recent triennial actuarial valuation was completed as at 31
March 2016 and rolled forward allowing for different financial assumptions required under FRS 102, to
31 March 2019. The next triennial valuation will be undertaken as at 31 March 2019.
The market value of WDH’s share of the schemes assets at the 31 March 2019 was £284.3m against
scheme liabilities of £347.2m, a deficit of £62.9m.
The employer’s contribution to the LGPS by WDH for the year ended 31 March 2019 was £5.5m (2018:
£5.2m). The employer’s contribution rate was set at 14.3% of pensionable salaries as from 1 April
2019. The employer contribution rate for next year is set at 14.3% which will be in the region of £5.8m
for the year ending 31 March 2020.
McCloud
In December 2018, the Court of Appeal ruled that there was age discrimination in the way certain
transitional protections have been applied in respect of the Judges and Firefighters pension schemes.
The principles of this case are also applicable to Local Government Pension Schemes. As a result, the
actuaries have reviewed the impact of this on WDH and £3,433k has been included within past service
costs to reflect this. This liability has been calculated using the government actuaries’ departments
methodology which takes a worst case scenario approach.
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9.

Employees (continued)

Guaranteed Minimum Pension
Guaranteed Minimum Pension is a portion of pension that was accrued by individuals who were
contracted out of the Stated Second Pension prior to 6 April 1999. The rate at which GMP was
accrued, and the date it is payable, is different for men and women, meaning there is in inequality for
male and female members who have GMP. WDH have had this liability included within past service
costs. The impact on the liability is £436k.
Financial Assumptions

Discount rate
Future salary increases
Future pension increases
Inflation assumption

31 March 2019
% per
annum
2.50
3.35
2.10
3.20

31 March 2018
% per
annum
2.60
3.25
2.00
3.10

Mortality Assumptions
The mortality assumptions are based on actual mortality experience of members within the Fund based on
analysis carried out as part of the 2016 valuation and allow for expected future mortality improvements.
Life expectancies at age 65 resulting from these mortality assumptions are shown below:

Retiring today:
Males
Females
Retiring in 20 years:
Males
Females

Amounts Recognised in Surplus or Deficit

Current service cost
Past service cost

2019
No. of
years

2018
No. of
years

22.2
25.4

22.1
25.3

23.2
27.2

23.1
27.1

2019
£’000

2018
£’000

11,964
3,869

11,313
-

15,833

11,313
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Employees (continued)

Amounts charged to operating costs

2019
£’000

2018
£’000

Net interest

1,041

1,024

Amounts charged to interest payable and similar charges

1,041

1,024

Reconciliation of Opening and Closing Balances of the Present Value of Scheme
Liabilities
2019
2018
£’000
£’000
Opening scheme liabilities
Current service cost
Interest cost
Contributions by participants
Actuarial loss on liabilities
Benefits paid
Past service cost

312,967
11,964
8,080
2,573
14,888
(7,161)
3,869

296,221
11,313
7,669
2,456
403
(5,095)
-

Closing value of scheme liabilities

347,180

312,967

Reconciliation of Opening and Closing Balances of the Present Value of Scheme
Assets
2019
2018
£’000
£’000
Opening fair value of plan assets
Interest income
Actuarial gains on assets
Contributions by employer
Contributions by participants
Net benefits paid out

270,198
7,039
6,168
5,504
2,573
(7,161)

254,248
6,645
6,728
5,216
2,456
(5,095)

Closing fair value of scheme assets

284,321

270,198
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Employees (continued)

Net position of the Pension Scheme in the Statement of Financial Position
2019
2018
£’000
£’000
Scheme liabilities
(347,180)
(312,967)
Scheme assets
284,321
270,198
Net liability of the pension scheme

(62,859)

(42,769)

Actuarial (Loss) / Gain Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
2019
£’000
Actuarial loss on liabilities
(14,888)
Actuarial gain on assets
6,168

2018
£’000
(403)
6,728

Actuarial (loss) / gain

(8,720)

6,325

2019
£’000
7,039
6,168

2018
£’000
6,645
6,728

13,207

13,373

Actual Return on Scheme Assets

Interest income on assets
Gain on assets
Actual return on scheme assets

Major Categories of Plan Assets as a Percentage of Total Plan Assets

Equities
Property
Government bonds
Corporate bonds
Cash
Other

2019
%

2018
%

74.0
4.7
11.2
4.0
2.3
3.8

77.3
4.5
9.4
3.7
1.8
3.3
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Employees (continued)

Sensitivity Analysis
Discount Rate
+ 0.1%
Per annum

Present value of total obligation

- 0.1%
Per annum

£’000

Base
figure
£’000

339,595

347,180

354,934

£’000

Mortality Rate
+ 0.1%
Per annum

Present value of total obligation

- 0.1%
Per annum

£’000

Base
figure
£’000

357,828

347,180

336,595

£’000

Rate of General Increase in Salaries
+ 0.1%
Per annum

Present value of total obligation

- 0.1%
Per annum

£’000

Base
figure
£’000

349,607

347,180

344,778

£’000
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Board Members and Executive Directors

Executive Directors Emoluments
Key management personnel:
Aggregate emoluments of Executive Directors (including National
Insurance but excluding pension)
Aggregate value of Association pension contributions
Total Emoluments
Number of Executive Directors accruing retirement benefits under
defined benefit schemes as at year end

2019

2018

£’000

£’000

582

484

71

59

653

543

3

3

177

169

25

24

Highest Paid Director
Aggregate emoluments (excluding National Insurance)
Pension contributions

The Chief Executive is a member of the LGPS. He is an ordinary member of the pension scheme with
no enhanced or special terms. The Association does not make any further contribution to an individual
pension arrangement for the Chief Executive or any other Director.
Non Executive Board Emoluments
2019

2018

Stephen Green
Jacqui Williams
William Clift MBE
Kathryn Cooper
Peter Loosemore
Sally Wright
Graham Stokes
Phillip Earnshaw
Andrew Stubbs

£
10,000
7,500
7,500
2,000
7,500
6,000
5,000
1,300

£
7,500
5,625
3,100
5,625
2,250
5,625
4,500
-

Total Emoluments

46,800

34,225

There was no compensation payable to Directors or past Directors. There was no consideration
payable to third parties for making available the services of any person to perform the role of Director.
During the year, ex-gracia payments totalling £nil were made (2018: £22k).
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Tax on Deficit on Ordinary Activities

(a)

Analysis of Charge in Year
Group

Association

2019
£’000

2018
£’000

2019
£’000

2018
£’000

52

87

52

87

-

-

-

-

52

87

52

87

Deferred Tax
Origination and reversal of timing differences

-

-

-

-

Total Deferred Tax

-

-

-

-

52

87

52

87

Current Tax
UK Corporation Tax on result for the period
Adjustments in respect of prior periods
Total Current Tax (note 11b)

Tax on surplus

(b)

Factors Affecting Tax Charge for the Year
Group

Surplus on ordinary activities
before tax
Adjustments in respect of
charitable activities
Surplus on ordinary activities
subject to tax
Surplus on ordinary activities
subject to tax multiplied by the
standard rate of corporation tax
in the UK of 19%
Effects of:
Utilisation of tax losses

Association

2019
£’000

2018
£’000

2019
£’000

2018
£’000

14,892

30,852

14,789

30,611

(14,618)

(30,395)

(14,515)

(30,154)

274

457

274

457

52

87

52

87

-

-

-

-

52

87

52

87

The tax assessed differs from the standard rate of Corporation Tax in the UK 19% (2018: 19%). The
differences are explained below:
Unused tax losses total £nil, (2018: £nil).
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Tangible Fixed Assets – Properties

Group and Association –
Housing properties

Social
Housing
Properties
Held for
Letting

Social
Housing
Properties
Under
Construction

Shared
Ownership
Properties
Held for
Letting

HomeSpace
Properties

Total
Properties

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

3,750
849
(4,599)
-

667,947
30,506
16,905
1,126
(507)
(4,585)
(2,833)

Cost or valuation
At 1 April 2018
Additions
Work to existing properties
Transfer to rented
Transfer to shared
Transfer from current assets
Transfer to other assets
Schemes completed
Disposals
Valuation adjustment

646,933
360
16,905
6,419
(652)
1,126
(507)
18,801
(4,208)
(4,037)

6,164
29,297
(23,963)
-

11,100
(1,821)
652
5,162
(377)
1,204

At 31 March 2019
Depreciation and impairment
At 1 April 2018
Depreciation charged in year
Released on disposal
Impairment
Valuation adjustment

681,140

11,498

15,920

-

23,531
(49)
184
(23,666)

-

87
(25)
(62)

-

708,558
23,618
(74)
184
(23,728)

At 31 March 2019
Net book value
At 31 March 2019

-

-

-

-

-

681,140

11,498

15,920

-

708,558

At 31 March 2018

646,933

6,164

11,100

3,750

667,947
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Tangible Fixed Assets – Properties (continued)

Valuation
Completed housing properties are stated at EUV-SH with special assumptions, including notional
directly attributable material acquisition costs. WDH’s housing properties have been valued by
professional external valuers, Savills (L and P) Limited, a general practice firm providing surveying and
valuation services. The latest valuation was performed on 31 March 2019. The full valuation of the
properties was undertaken in accordance with the Appraisal and Valuation Manual of the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors and incorporates the regulatory requirements of the RSH.
Properties at valuation under EUV-SH have a carrying value of £697m (2018: £662m).
In valuing housing properties, discounted cash flow methodology was adopted with the following key
assumptions:
Group and Association

2019
%

2018
%

Discount rates
Social Transferred
Social Post Transfer
Intermediate
Affordable Transferred
Affordable Post Transfer
Shared Ownership

5.25%
5.00%
5.00%
5.25%
5.00%
4.75%

5.50%
5.00%
5.00%
5.50%
5.00%
5.00%

CPI Inflation
Year 1
Year 2
Year 3

2.00%
2.00%
2.00%

2.50%
2.25%
2.00%

CPI + 1%

CPI + 1%

Long Term Rental Growth

The carrying value of housing properties that would have been included in the Financial Statements
had the assets been carried at historical cost less depreciation and impairment is as follows:
Group and Association

Housing properties at historical cost
Depreciation and impairment

2019
£’000

2018
£’000

721,046
(164,120)

676,995
(140,889)

556,926

536,106
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Tangible Fixed Assets – Properties (continued)

Social Housing and Other Grants
Group and Association
Total Social Housing Grant at 31 March:
Recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income
Recognised in previous years
Deferred income

Housing properties book value net of depreciation:
Group and Association
Freehold land and buildings
Long leasehold land and buildings

2019
£’000

2018
£’000

3,189
47,299
2,721

2,117
43,918
1,264

53,209

47,299

2019
£’000

2018
£’000

704,822
3,736

664,127
3,820

708,558

667,947

At the 31 March 2019 the Group and WDH had 261 (2018: 260) social housing properties held for letting
and five (2018: five) low cost shared ownership properties on long leaseholds.
Expenditure on works to existing properties
Group and Association

2019
£ ’000

2018
£ ’000

Improvement works capitalised
Amounts charged to income and expenditure account

16,905

19,837

13,304

5,256

30,209

25,093

Impairment
The Group considers individual assets when assessing for impairment in accordance with the requirements
of FRS 102 and SORP 2014.
There was an impairment charge during the year ended 31 March 2019 of £184k in relation to properties
that are awaiting demolition (2018: £91k).
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Tangible Fixed Assets – Other

Group and Association
Plant and
Equipment
£’000

Furniture
Fixtures and
Fittings
£’000

12,448
(1)
12,447

661
210
871

6,538
812
(1,148)
6,202

3,353
20
(1,212)
2,161

111
111

23,111
1,042
(2,361)
21,792

995
247
1,242

556
70
626

3,965
285
(1,148)
3,102

2,489
257
(1,212)
1,534

62
22
84

8,067
881
(2,360)
6,588

Net book value
At 31 March 2019

11,205

245

3,100

627

27

15,204

At 31 March 2018

11,453

105

2,573

864

49

15,044

Freehold
Offices
£’000
Cost
At 1 April 2018
Additions
Write-off
At 31 March 2019
Depreciation
At 1 April 2018
Depreciation charged in year
Write-off
At 31 March 2019

Computer
Equipment
£’000

Motor
Vehicles
£’000

Total
£’000

There are no tangible fixed assets purchased under finance leases.
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Intangible Assets

Cost
At 1 April 2018
Additions
Written off
Transferred to completed
At 31 March 2019
Amortisation
At 1 April 2018
Amortisation in year
At 31 March 2019
Net book value
At 31 March 2019
At 31 March 2018

15.

Computer
Software
£’000

Computer
Software Under
Construction
£’000

Total
£’000

5,851
4
499
6,354

2,134
3,935
(121)
(499)
5,449

7,985
3,939
(121)
11,803

5,850
250
6,100

-

5,850
250
6,100

254
1

5,449
2,134

5,703
2,135

Investment Properties

Group and Association
2019
£’000
At 1 April 2018
Additions
Disposals
Decrease in value

12,000
499
(49)
(600)

At 31 March 2019

11,850

Investment properties comprise of shops and garages held for letting. Investment properties were
valued at 31 March 2019 at market value. The Group’s investment properties have been valued by
Savills (L and P) Limited, a general practice firm providing surveying and valuation services. The latest
valuation was performed on 31 March 2019. The full valuation of the properties was undertaken in
accordance with the Appraisal and Valuation Manual of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.
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Homebuy Loans

Group and Association
2019
£’000
At 1 April 2018
Loans repaid

153
(6)

At 31 March 2019

147

Under the scheme individuals are provided with a loan of up to 15% of the purchase price of the property.
Under the equity release scheme, a loan is provided to tenants allowing them to buy into the improvement
programme. Loans are provided up to the value of works required. The loan is repayable if the property is
sold, and becomes interest bearing after five years of commencement of the loan.

17.

Investment in Subsidiaries and Joint Venture

As required by statute and the accounting standards, the Financial Statements consolidate the result of
WDHS and NSS, which are subsidiaries of WDH. WDH has the right to appoint members to the Board of
the subsidiaries and thereby exercises control over them. WDH is the ultimate parent undertaking.
The following are subsidiary and joint venture undertakings of the Association:
Name
WDH Solutions Limited
Northern Shared Services Limited
Bridge Homes (Yorkshire) LLP

Holding
100%
51%
50%

The main activity of WDHS is the provision of repairs, maintenance and installations, predominantly
outside of the social housing sector.
NSS is a subsidiary created in March 2013, which is a cost sharing entity and has £nil residual profits.
The main activity of NSS is to provide repairs and maintenance, void repairs, and gas maintenance
services to social housing. The Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income and Statement of
Financial Position include £nil profits.
Bridge Homes (Yorkshire) LLP is a joint venture created in July 2014, as a Limited Liability Partnership
whose main activity is to build and sell homes. WDH has a 50% interest in Bridge Homes, it is
considered to be a joint venture on the basis of joint control. The investment in Bridge Homes is shown
below.
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Investment in Subsidiaries and Joint Venture (continued)

Investment in the Joint Venture

At 1 April
Additional investment
Share of profit in joint venture

2019
£’000
3,241
750
51

Group
2018
£’000
1,700
1,300
241

Association
2019
2018
£’000
£’000
2,750
1,450
750
1,300
-

At 31 March

4,042

3,241

3,500

2,750

The additional investment relates to cash invested in Bridge Homes (Yorkshire) LLP during the year.
During the year WDH had the following intra-group transactions with WDHS and NSS.
2019
£’000
Management Services
WDHS
Directly attributable costs
of WDHS
Gift aid
Management Services
NSS
Repairs and maintenance
Services NSS

2018
£’000

101

67

899

558

The charge is based on directly
attributable labour costs.
Directly attributable costs.

23

126

Gift aid received from WDHS.

193

215

4,418

4,676

The charge is based on directly
attributable labour costs.
The charge is based on directly
attributable costs.

5,634

18.

5,642

Properties Held for Sale

Group
2019
£’000

Properties held for sale
Shared ownership properties
under construction

Allocation Basis

2018
£’000

Association
2019
2018
£’000
£’000

4,568

5,889

4,568

5,889

57

45

57

45

4,625

5,934

4,625

5,934
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Trade and Other Debtors
Group

Due within one year
Rent and service charges
receivable
Less net present value of tenants
on arrangements
Less provision for bad and
doubtful debts

Sundry debtors
Less provision for bad and
doubtful debts

Other debtors
Prepayments and accrued income
Amounts due from Bridge Homes
(Yorkshire) LLP
Amounts due from WDH Solutions
and NSS

2019
£’000
10,604

2018
£’000
6,191

Association
2019
2018
£’000
£’000
10,604

6,191

(68)

(112)

(68)

(112)

(5,669)

(4,950)

(5,669)

(4,950)

4,867

1,129

4,867

1,129

759
(431)

1,142
(556)

716
(431)

880
(556)

328

586

285

324

4,002
1,633
23

2,730
747
53

2,491
1,599
23

2,019
704
53

-

-

2,142

951

10,853

5,245

11,407

5,180
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Creditors: Amounts Falling Due Within One Year
Group
2019
£’000

Debt (note 25)
Trade creditors
Rent and service charges received
in advance
Social Housing Grant received in
advance
Recycled capital grant fund (note
22)
Disposal proceeds fund
(note 23)
Corporation tax
Other tax and social security
Other creditors
Accruals and deferred income

21.

2018
£’000

Association
2019
2018
£’000
£’000

2,200
3,348

1,100
3,026

2,200
3,348

1,100
3,026

1,083

2,083

1,083

2,083

2,721
-

1,264
27

2,721
-

1,264
27

2,304
52
1,079
2,000
4,557

87
993
1,959
4,861

2,304
52
988
2,000
4,515

87
913
1,959
4,681

19,346

15,400

19,211

15,140

Creditors: Amounts Falling Due After More Than One Year
Group
2019
£’000

Debt (note 25)
Recycled capital grant fund
(note 22)
Disposal proceeds fund
(note 23)

2018
£’000

Association
2019
2018
£’000
£’000

417,300

409,500

417,300

409,500

652

407

652

407

-

2,362

-

2,362

417,952

412,269

417,952

412,269
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Recycled Capital Grant Fund
Group
2019
£’000

2018
£’000

Association
2019
2018
£’000
£’000

At 1 April 2018
Grants recycled
Withdrawals
Interest

434
347
(130)
1

236
405
(207)
-

434
347
(130)
1

236
405
(207)
-

At 31 March 2019

652

434

652

434

Withdrawals form the Recycled Capital Grant Fund have been used for the purchase and development
of new housing schemes for letting and for approved works to existing properties.
There is £nil due within one year (2018: £27k).

23.

Disposal Proceeds Fund
2019
£’000

Group

2018
£’000

Association
2019
2018
£’000
£’000

At 1 April 2018
Withdrawals

2,362
(58)

2,620
(258)

2,362
(58)

2,620
(258)

At 31 March 2019

2,304

2,362

2,304

2,362

There is no grant due for repayment within one year (2018: £nil).
Withdrawals from the Disposal Proceeds Fund were used for approved schemes and released on
completion of the related properties. The remaining balance has been fully allocated to development
schemes and will be released on completion of the related properties. All funds will be utilised by
31 March 2020 and no repayment will be due to Homes England.
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Advance Receipts and Payments

Immediately prior to entering into the Stock Transfer Agreement between Wakefield Council and WDH at
March 2005, Wakefield Council and WDH entered into a contract for WDH to perform the improvement
works required to bring the properties into an agreed state. The contract was for a fixed sum equal to the
expected cost of the works, which is £672m exclusive of VAT. At transfer, WDH contracted with Wakefield
Council to acquire the benefit of the agreed refurbishment works (£672m) plus the housing properties at a
price equal to the agreed value of the properties in their unenhanced condition (£15m). These contracts
have enabled WDH to recover VAT on repair and improvement costs that would otherwise have been
expensed.
At the time of transfer WDH paid over a net cash amount of £15m to Wakefield Council, representing the
acquisition of the properties in their unenhanced condition (£15m) and the value of Wakefield Council’s
obligation to carry out the improvements works (£672m), less the amount due to be incurred by WDH under
the Development Agreement in relation to the anticipated cost of the repairs and improvements (£672m).
At 31 March 2019, £842m (2018: £810m) inclusive of VAT of the improvement works had been
undertaken including adaptation works. To date £101m has been reclaimed under the VAT shelter.

25.

Debt Analysis

Group and Association
Due after more than one year
Bank loans

Group and Association
Within one year
Between one and two years
Between two and five years
After five years

2019
£’000

2018
£’000

417,300

409,500

417,300

409,500

2019
£’000
2,200
3,300
32,023
381,977

2018
£’000
1,100
2,200
9,246
398,054

419,500

410,600

The bank loans are secured by a floating charge over the assets of WDH and by fixed charges on
individual properties. The bank loans are repaid in variable instalments at fixed and floating rates of
interest ranging from 1.25% to 6.70%. The final instalments of current loans fall to be repaid by
15 March 2038. At 31 March 2019, WDH had undrawn loan facilities of £75m (2018: £85m).
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26.

Share Capital

The Association is limited by guarantee and therefore has no share capital.

27.

Group Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Surplus for the year
Adjustments for non-cash items:
Depreciation of housing property
Depreciation of other fixed assets
Amortisation of intangible assets
Impairment of housing properties
Grant receivable
Profit on disposal of assets
Loss on valuation of investment property
Decrease / (increase) in property held for sale
Decrease in stock
(Increase) / decrease in trade and other debtors
Decrease in trade and other creditors
Pension costs less contributions payable
Tax payable
Share of operating surplus in joint venture
Adjustments for investing or financing activities:
Interest payable
Interest received
Tax paid
Net cash generated from operating activities

2019
£’000
14,840

2018
£’000
30,765
Re

23,618
881
250
184
(3,189)
(2,732)
600
1,309
(4,967)
(853)
10,329
52
(51)
25,431

19,624
1,593
2
91
(2,117)
(1,016)
705
(2,643)
304
4,921
(793)
6,097
87
(241)
26,614

18,582
(411)
18,171

19,147
(208)
18,939

(87)

(102)

58,355

76,216
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28.

Financial Commitments

Capital expenditure commitments were as follows:
Group and Association
Capital expenditure tangible assets
Expenditure contracted for but not provided in the accounts
Expenditure authorised by the Board, but not contracted
Total tangible assets
Capital expenditure intangible assets
Expenditure contracted for but not provided in the accounts
Expenditure authorised by the Board, but not contracted
Total intangible assets
Total

2019
£’000

2018
£’000

36,976

36,901

35,224
72,200

43,319
80,220

-

3,402

4,686

2,109

4,686

5,511

76,886

85,731

Commitments will be financed primarily through operating cash flows and, if required, through
borrowings from the existing undrawn loan facility.

29.

Operating Leases

The future minimum lease payments of leases are as set out below. Leases relate to office space in
eight locations, photocopiers and motor vehicles.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

2019
£’000

2018
£’000

Land and buildings
Within one year
Between one to five years
Later than five years
Total

623
2,391
2,577
5,591

631
2,371
3,359
6,361

Office equipment and computers
Within one year
Between one to five years
Later than five years
Total

8
8

51
8
59

Motor vehicles
Within one year
Between one to five years
Later than five years
Total

1,240
336
1,576

1,849
1,681
3,530
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30.

Contingent Assets and Liabilities

The Group and Association have no contingent assets at 31 March 2019 (2018: £nil).

31.

Financial Assets and Liabilities

The policy on financial instruments is explained in the Report of the Board as are references to financial
risks.
Categories of financial assets and liabilities

Financial Assets at amortised cost
Homebuy loans receivable
Rents and service charges receivable
Sundry debtors
Other debtors
Cash and cash equivalents
Financial Liabilities at amortised cost
Debt
Trade creditors
Other creditors
Disposal Proceeds Fund
Recycled Capital Grant Fund
Accruals

2019
£’000

2018
£’000

147
4,867
328
4,083
87,572
96,997

153
1,129
586
3,064
80,121
85,053

419,500
3,348
2,000
2,304
652
4,023

410,600
3,026
3,066
2,362
434
4,860

431,827

424,348

Financial Assets
Other than debtors, financial assets held are overnight cash deposits of £45.7m (2018: £45.4m) at 31
March 2019 and are held at call, and £41.2m (2018: £34.1m) cash on term deposit. They are sterling
denominated and attract interest at rates that vary with bank rates.
Financial Liabilities excluding Trade Creditors – Interest Rate Risk Profile
The Group’s financial liabilities are sterling denominated. The interest rate profile of the Group’s financial
liabilities at 31 March was:
2019
2018
£’000
£’000
Floating rate
Fixed rate

94,500
325,000

84,600
326,000

Total (note 25)

419,500

410,600

The floating rate of financial liabilities comprise of bank loans that bear interest at rates based on the threemonth London Interbank Offered Rate.
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31. Financial Assets and Liabilities (continued)
Borrowing Facilities
The Group has undrawn committed borrowing facilities. The drawn and undrawn facilities available at 31
March, in respect of which all conditions precedent had been met, were as follows:
2019
£’000
Overdraft expiring in one year or less
Loan facility expiring in less than one year
Loan facility expiring in more than one year but not more
than two years
Loan facility expiring in more than two years

32.

2018
£’000

2,200
3,300

1,100
2,200

489,000

492,300

494,500

495,600

Related Parties

At the year end there were three locally elected Council members: Jacqueline Williams, Graham Stokes
and Jacqueline Speight on the Board. The Group undertakes transactions with Wakefield Council at
arms length in the normal course of business.
Disclosures in relation to key management personnel and payments to Board members are included in
note 10.
In March 2013, WDH and Together Housing Association incorporated a cost sharing group, Northern
Shared Services Limited (NSS). WDH holds 51% and members of Together Housing Association hold
40%, and Arches Housing own 1% of the share capital. The company has been established to provide
repairs and maintenance, void repairs, and gas maintenance services. During the year WDH charged
NSS £4,496k (2018: £4,777k) for repairs and maintenance services, as at 31 March 2019 NSS owed
WDH £1,477k
(2018: £671k).
The Association has taken advantage of the exemption available, under Section 33 of FRS 102, from
disclosing transactions between the Association and its wholly owned subsidiary undertakings, WDHS.
In July 2014, WDH and Wakefield Council created Bridge Homes (Yorkshire) LLP, WDH has a 50%
interest. The joint venture has been established to build homes for outright sale. During the year
Bridge Homes purchased from WDH £257k of services (2018: £160k). During the year WDH
purchased properties from Bridge Homes totalling £1,913k (2018: £nil). As at 31 March 2019 Bridge
Homes owed WDH £23k (2018: £53k) and WDH owed Bridge homes £3k (2018: £nil).
All related party transactions are at arms length.
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Vision
to create confident communities
Mission
to inspire, transform and promote excellence
Values
to be creative, inclusive and work with integrity
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